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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

City of Liberty           

Liberty, South Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund of the City of Liberty as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements, as listed in the table of contents. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.                                                
P. O. Box 925

Easley, S. C. 29641

Telephone (864) 855-5621 Fax (864) 855-5622

Member of 

American Institute of Certified Public Accountants

South Carolina Association of Certified Public Accountants
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To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

City of Liberty

Page Two
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
Summary of Opinions

	Opinion Unit
	Type of Opinion

	Governmental Activities
	Unmodified

	Business-Type Activities
	Unmodified

	General Fund
	Qualified

	Water and Sewer Fund
	Unmodified


Basis for Qualified Opinion on General Fund
Management has comingled its special revenue funds with the General Fund in the fund financial statements as opposed to reporting those special revenue funds as either major funds or nonmajor funds. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that each of the fund financial statements should report separate columns for the General Fund and for each major fund. Furthermore, all nonmajor funds should be reported in the aggregate in a separate column. This departure from accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America has resulted in an overstatement of the fund balance of the General Fund by approximately $99,000.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion on General Fund” paragraph, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the General Fund of the City of Liberty, South Carolina, as of June 30, 2016, and the changes in financial position thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Unmodified Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and the major proprietary fund of the City of Liberty, South Carolina, as of June 30, 2016, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s Discussion and Analysis, the Schedule of the City’s Proportionate Shares of the Net Pension Liabilities – South Carolina Retirement System (SCRS) and Police Officers Retirement System (PORS) on page 60, and the Schedule of Pension Plan Contributions – South Carolina Retirement System (SCRS) and Police Officers Retirement System (PORS) on page 61 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. 
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To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

City of Liberty

Page Three

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
Other Matters (Continued)
Required Supplementary Information (Continued)
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Management has omitted the Management’s Discussion and Analysis that accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information.
Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the City of Liberty’s basic financial statements. The Schedule of Revenues – General Fund – Budget and Actual on pages 63 – 65; the Schedule of Expenditures – General Fund – Budget and Actual on pages 66 – 70; and the Schedule of Fines, Assessments, and Surcharges on page 71 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The Schedule of Revenues – General Fund – Budget and Actual; the Schedule of Expenditures – General Fund – Budget and Actual; and the Schedule of Fines, Assessments, and Surcharges are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Schedule of Revenues – General Fund – Budget and Actual; the Schedule of Expenditures – General Fund – Budget and Actual; and the Schedule of Fines, Assessments, and Surcharges are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Curry, P. A.

Easley, South Carolina
December 31, 2016
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CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2016









        Primary Government                                                                        


Governmental
  Business-type







                      Activities        
      Activities     
                     Total                 

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
 $
576,453

$                 -
$
576,453
Receivables: (net of allowance for uncollectibles)

Taxes receivable
49,385

49,385


Grant receivable
16,000
320,164
336,164


Due from other governments
313,749
78,418
392,167

Utility billings
-
152,989
152,989

Other
13,138
-
13,138
Internal balances
-
909,734                               
909,734
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
99,182
-
99,182

Prepaid expenses

5,710 

5,371

11,081

Total current assets
 
1,073,617

1,466,676

2,540,293
Non-current assets:

Restricted assets:
    Cash and cash equivalents
-
19,896
19,896
Capital assets: 



Land
114,668
6,414
121,082
Construction in progress
2,863
-
2,863

Buildings and system improvements
1,582,805
68,638
1,651,443

Roads, sidewalks, and city lots
1,818,691
-
1,818,691

Water and sewer lines
-
6,096,942
6,096,942
Vehicles
966,688
123,152
1,089,840

Machinery and equipment
741,201
291,323
1,032,524
Furniture and fixtures
11,578
-
11,578
Software
32,004
21,208
53,212
Less: accumulated depreciation
     (3,340,027)
     (2,604,970)
(5,944,997)


Total non-current assets

1,930,471

4,022,603
 
 5,953,074

Total assets

3,004,088

5,489,279

8,493,367
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

 SCRS net difference between expected and actual experience

 related to pensions
        11,185
         
          7,623                                   18,808
 PORS net difference between expected and actual experience

 related to pensions
        28,525

                 -

         28,525

 SCRS net difference between projected and actual investment

 earnings

4,214

2,872

7,086  

 PORS net difference between projected and actual investment

 earnings

15,747

-

15,747 

 SCRS deferred amount from changes in proportionate share

68,170

46,469

114,639
 PORS deferred amount from changes in proportionate share

52,621

-

52,621
 SCRS retirement contributions made subsequent to 06/30/15
         31,225

        21,285

         52,510
 PORS retirement contributions made subsequent to 06/30/15
       125,049

                  -

       125,049

Total deferred outflows of resources
       336,736

        78,249

       414,985

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources
   
3,340,824

   5,567,528

    8,908,352
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CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2016









        Primary Government                                                                        


Governmental
  Business-type







                      Activities        
      Activities     
                     Total                 

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:

Accrued liabilities  
120,022
533,286
653,308

Accrued interest
1,191
4,285
5,476                                                                                                    

Capital lease obligations, current 
59,481
-
59,481                                                                       
Bonds payable, current  
-
74,504
74,504

Miscellaneous
3,841
-
3,841

Customer deposits subject to refunds 
-
15,075
15,075 
Internal balances
     
909,734

-

909,734

Total current liabilities
    1,094,269

627,150

 1,721,419
Non-current liabilities:

Compensated absences
84,166
17,136
101,302

SCRS net pension liability                                                                               
673,776
384,877
1,058,653
PORS net pension liability                                                                            
1,439,209
-
1,439,209

Capital lease obligations, non-current
125,481
-
125,481 

Bonds payable, non-current
                  - 

241,511

241,511 
      Total noncurrent liabilities
   
2,322,632

643,524

2,966,156

Total liabilities
   
3,416,901

1,270,674

4,687,575
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

SCRS net difference between projected and actual

earnings related to pensions



      
       
 1,126

                767

           1,893
     
Total deferred inflows of resources


              
 1,126

               
767

          1,893

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources                              
3,418,027
1,271,441                              4,689,468
NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
1,930,471
4,002,707                              5,933,178
Restricted for:

Local law enforcement and victims’ assistance
48,527
-
                                  48,527

Recreation and tourism
32,340
-
                                  32,340

Drug seizures
3,936
-
3,936


Fire Department operating expenses
14,379
-
14,379


Operation and maintenance of water system
-
19,896
                                  19,896

Unrestricted                                                                                                
  (2,106,856)                      
  273,484
                            (1,833,372)


Total net position
$
(77,203)
$
4,296,087 
$
  4,218,884 

See the independent auditors’ report and the notes to the financial statements which are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016






                                                                     Net Revenues (Expenses) and 




                                                
                                                
Program Revenues                                              
                    Changes in Net Position                                                                                                                                                                                                                    




                                                                                                                               Operating                      Capital                   
                       Primary Government                               
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         Charges For           Grants and
Grants and
                  Governmental
      Business-Type



Function/Programs

Expenses 
     Services
            Contributions
   Contributions                   Activities          
 Activities                       Total     
Primary government


Governmental activities



General government
$
384,644
$
344,716
$
-
$
-
$
 (39,928)                $    
-
$
   (39,928)





Police
915,226

120,580

6,616
2,000

(786,030)

-
(786,030)





Fire
677,018
218,589
15,441
-

(442,988)

-
(442,988)


Public Works

369,300

161,479

-
451,725

243,904

-
243,904


Recreation

414,863

99,422




(315,441)

-
(315,441)



Interest on long-term debt
 
6,080

-

-

-
 
     (6,080) 
                   -

(6,080)


Total governmental activities

2,767,131

944,786

22,057
 
 453,725
 
  (1,346,563)
                   -
   (1,346,563)
Business-type activities
       Water
566,272
570,872
-
-
-
4,600
4,600


 Sewer


760,955

721,947

-

390,135
                   -
     
 351,127                 
  351,127


Total business-type activities

1,327,227

1,292,819

-
 
 390,135
 
  -
       355,727
 
   355,727


Total primary government
$
4,094,358
$
2,237,605

$
22,057
$
843,860                   
 (1,346,563)
      
355,727               
 (990,836)









General Revenues:





    Taxes:





 
Property taxes


460,781
-
460,781





Franchise taxes


234,174
-
234,174





Hospitality taxes


80,547
-
80,547





Broker taxes


4,151
-
4,151





MASC telecommunications taxes

11,715
-
11,715





Housing Authority in lieu of taxes

3,959
-
3,959




State-shared revenues



506,903
-
506,903




Fines
                                                                                                             213,713
-
213,713




Restricted investment earnings



-
100
100




Gain (loss) on disposal of fixed assets


46
(10,238)
(10,192)





Other revenues

36,113

15,155

51,268       





Total general revenues 



1,552,102 
  
         5,017
 
   1,557,119 





Changes in net position



205,539

360,744

566,283




Net position, beginning



(282,742)

3,935,343

3,652,601





Net position, ending

                                                                                                
$
(77,203)
$    4,296,087 
$  4,218,884 

See the independent auditors’ report and the notes to the financial statements which are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUND

JUNE 30, 2016
Assets


Cash and cash equivalents


$
576,453


Receivables:




Taxes receivable


49,385



Grant receivable


16,000



Due from other governments


313,749




Other



13,138



Prepaid expenses
5,710


Restricted assets:



Cash and cash equivalents


 
99,182






Total assets


$
1,073,617
Liabilities


Accrued liabilities


$
120,022


Internal balances


909,734


Miscellaneous




3,841




Total liabilities



1,033,597
Deferred Inflows of Resources


Unavailable revenue, Pickens County C funds


51,906


Unavailable revenue, property taxes

                                                                           
89,413





Total deferred inflows of resources

                                                                           
141,319

Fund Balances


Nonspendable 




Prepaid expenses


5,710



Restricted 




99,182


Unassigned



                                                                           
      (206,191)





Total fund balances


 
   (101,299)





Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and fund balances

$
1,073,617 
Fund Balances – Total Governmental Fund


$ 
(101,299)


Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement





 
of net position are different because:





Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial





resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental fund

1,930,471




Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period





and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental fund






Accrued compensated absences


(84,166)







Capital leases


(184,962)







SCRS net pension liability


(673,776)






PORS net pension liability


(1,439,209)




The deferred outflows of resources related to pensions are not financial resources




and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.


336,736




The deferred inflows of resources related to pensions are not reported in the 





governmental funds.


(1,126)





Property taxes and Pickens County C funds, deferred inflows of resources in the 




governmental fund, are susceptible to full accrual in the government-wide statements.






          Pickens County C funds


51,906






          Property taxes


89,413




Accrued interest expense is recorded in the government-wide statements







but is not recorded in the governmental fund


     
(1,191)
Net Position Of Governmental Activities


$
(77,203) 
See the independent auditors’ report and the notes to the financial statements which are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

 STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE – GOVERNMENTAL FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            
                           

    





      GENERAL











           FUND
                                                                                                                                            

REVENUES

Property taxes
$
453,714


Franchise taxes

234,174


Hospitality taxes

80,547


Broker taxes

4,151


MASC telecommunications taxes

11,715


Housing Authority in lieu of taxes

3,959

Licenses and permits

331,046

Intergovernmental

15,441





Fees and fines


213,963





Shared revenues


506,903







Miscellaneous


40,956





Grants


403,592






Charges for services

613,490





Total Revenues

2,913,651


EXPENDITURES


Current:






Administrative Department


351,474







Police Department


835,363







Fire Department


642,240







Public Works Department


270,386





Recreation Department


335,033


Capital Outlay


612,011


Debt Service:






Principal


104,275





Interest

6,080  





Total Expenditures

3,156,862 
Deficiency of Revenues





Under Expenditures


  
(243,211)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES




  Proceeds from disposal of fixed asset



9,790






Capital leases


                                                           
39,404





Total Other Financing Sources


                                                           
49,194
Net Change in Fund Balance



(194,017)
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING

92,718
FUND BALANCE, ENDING
$
(101,299)
 


See the independent auditors’ report and the notes to the financial statements which are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL FUND

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
Net change in fund balance - total governmental fund


($194,017)







                       



Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:




The governmental fund reports capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the




statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated




useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by 




which capital outlays exceeded depreciation expense in the current period.





The details of the difference are as follows:






Capital outlays

$  
612,011





Depreciation expense
                                                        
(232,736)  


379,275












Governmental funds report retirement contributions made subsequent to the measurement




date of June 30, 2015 as expenditures. However, these retirement contributions are not reported 




in the statement of activities but are reported as deferred outflows of resources in the




statement of net position. The actual pension expense reported in the statement of activities




is the City’s proportionate shares of the annual changes in both the SCRS and PORS net pension liabilities.

 

        
This is the amount by which the pension expense exceeded the retirement contributions



 
that were made subsequent to the measurement date of June 30, 2015.





The details of the difference are as follows:





SCRS and PORS proportionate pension expense

$
(214,265)





SCRS and PORS retirement contributions made





subsequent to the measurement date of June 30, 2015    

156,274     
(57,991)     




Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental fund, but the




repayments reduce long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. This is the




amount of long-term debt payments. 

                                                  
  104,275








                                                         



The following are reported as deferred inflows of resources in the governmental fund but are  



susceptible to full accrual in the government-wide statements. 





Pickens County C funds
  
$
51,906





Property taxes

                                                                   
7,067
58,973





Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current




financial resources and are not reported as expenditures in the governmental fund. This




includes the net increase in compensated absences of $37,212, an increase in expenses.
(37,212)





Accrued interest expense is reported in the government-wide statements but is not reported in




the governmental fund. This includes the net decrease in accrued interest, a reduction in




in expenses.


1,384



In the statement of activities, only the gain on the sale of the fixed asset is reported. However, in the



governmental funds, the proceeds from the sale increase financial resources. Therefore, the change
   


in net position differs from the change in fund balance by the adjusted basis of the fixed asset sold.
(9,744)



The governmental fund reports capital lease obligations as other financing sources. However, in the




government-wide statements, capital lease obligations are reported as additional liabilities.                           
(39,404)

      
Change in net position of governmental activities                                                                                                       $205,539                                                      
See the independent auditors’ report and the notes to the financial statements which are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL – GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

                                                                                                                                                                                       VARIANCE  WITH

                                    

                                      BUDGETED AMOUNTS                        ACTUAL                FINAL BUDGET            

                                                                                ORIGINAL                     FINAL                  AMOUNTS         POSITIVE (NEGATIVE)             

REVENUES


   
Property taxes
$
450,000
$
450,000
$
453,714
$
3,714



Franchise taxes

260,900

260,900

234,174

(26,726)



Hospitality taxes

65,000

65,000

80,547

15,547



Broker taxes

3,000

3,000

4,151

1,151



MASC telecommunications taxes

18,000

18,000

11,715

(6,285)


Housing authority in lieu of taxes

5,500

5,500

3,959

(1,541)



Licenses and permits

293,300

293,300

331,046

37,746



Intergovernmental
12,600
12,600
15,441
2,841



Fees and fines
150,200
150,200
213,963
63,763



Shared revenues
368,600
368,600
506,903
138,303



Miscellaneous
58,700
58,700
40,956
(17,744)



Grants
-
-
403,592
403,592



Charges for services

615,560 

615,560 

613,490

(2,070)





Total Revenues

2,301,360

2,301,360

2,913,651

612,291
EXPENDITURES
    
Current:





Administrative Department
344,050

344,050
351,474
(7,424)






Police Department
773,750

773,750
835,363
(61,613)






Fire Department
580,100

580,100
642,240
(62,140)






Public Works Department
279,191

279,191
270,386
8,805






Recreation Department
289,200

289,200
335,033
(45,833)




Capital Outlay
412,868
412,868
612,011
(199,143)

   

Debt Service:





Principal
91,987

91,987

104,275
(12,288)






Interest

10,045

10,045

6,080
         
3,965

 




Total Expenditures
 
 2,781,191

2,781,191 

3,156,862
       (375,671)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues





Over  (Under) Expenditures
  
 (479,831)
   
(479,831)

    (243,211)
       
236,620
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 


Sale of fixed asset
                                                      -
                               -
                       9,790
                           9,790



Capital leases                                            
                 -              
                 -                  
   39,404                       
  39,404






Total Other Financing Sources     
                   -                               -                  
  49,194                         
49,194
Net Change in Fund Balance                          
 (479,831)
           (479,831)            
(194,017)                
285,814






FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING

207,352 
         207,352
  
        92,718     
       
(114,634)
               

FUND BALANCE, ENDING
$
     (272,479) 
 $
     (272,479)
$
     (101,299)
$
171,180
See the independent auditors’ report and the notes to the financial statements which are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND

JUNE 30, 2016






                                   WATER AND






                                                                 SEWER FUND

ASSETS

Current assets:


Operational receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles)


$
152,989


RIA grant receivable



320,164


Due from other governments



78,418


Prepaid expenses


5,371


Internal balances



909,734 




Total current assets



1,466,676
Non-current assets:  



Restricted assets:






Cash



         19,896


Capital assets:









Land



6,414






Buildings and system improvements


68,638




Water and sewer lines


6,096,942




Vehicles



123,152




Machinery and equipment


291,323




Software


21,208





Less: accumulated depreciation

                                                                    
(2,604,970)




Total non-current assets



4,022,603




Total assets


$
5,489,279
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
SCRS net difference between expected and actual experience related to pensions
                                       
 $       
7,623 
SCRS net difference between projected and actual investment earnings related to pensions
2,872

SCRS deferred amounts from changes in proportionate share


46,469

SCRS retirement contributions made subsequent to 06/30/15

                                                                    
21,285




Total deferred outflows of resources

                                                                             78,249




Total assets and deferred outflows of resources


$  5,567,528
LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:








Accrued liabilities


$
533,286



Accrued interest


4,285


Bonds payable, current


74,504


Customer deposits subject to refund



15,075




Total current liabilities



627,150
Non-current liabilities:


Compensated absences


17,136


SCRS net pension liability


384,877


Bonds payable, non-current



241,511




Total non-current liabilities



643,524




Total liabilities


$
1,270,674

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
SCRS net difference between projected and actual investment earnings related to pensions
$
767




Total deferred inflows of resources


 
767




Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources


 $
1,271,441
NET POSITION





Invested in capital assets, net of related debt


$
4,002,707
Restricted





19,896

Unrestricted





       273,484




Total net position


$ 
4,296,087
See the independent auditors’ report and the notes to the financial statements which are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
________________________________________________________________________________________________________










                                                                                                                                                               WATER AND










                                              SEWER FUND

OPERATING REVENUES




Water billings

$
570,872



Sewer billings


721,947



Miscellaneous


15,155






Total Operating Revenues


1,307,974
OPERATING EXPENSES




Water Department

246,733



Water Purchases

243,627



Sewer Department

184,442



County facility fees

331,106



Inter-municipal agreement

100,085



Cramer/Roper fees

51,559



Bad debt expense

8,923




Depreciation


147,339






Total Operating Expenses


1,313,814


Operating Loss

           (5,840)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)



Interest income

100



Interest expense

(6,913)




Bond issuance expense

(6,500)




Loss on disposal of fixed assets

             (10,238)






Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)


(23,551)


Net Income Before Capital Contributions


(29,391)

  Capital Contributions


390,135

  Change in net position


360,744
TOTAL NET POSITION, BEGINNING


    3,935,343
TOTAL NET POSITION, ENDING

$
  4,296,087
See the independent auditors’ report and the notes to the financial statements which are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS – PROPRIETARY FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
________________________________________________________________________________________________



                                     

                    

                          WATER AND











                                                          
SEWER FUND  

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES


Receipts from customers and users

$
1,293,672



Payments to suppliers
(954,697)




Payments to employees


(194,391)










   Net cash provided by operating activities



144,584











CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED

FINANCING ACTIVITIES


Principal paid on revenue bonds


(14,392)
  



Interest paid on revenue bonds



(6,913)


Issuance of general obligation bonds



180,000



Cash paid for issuance of general obligation bonds



(6,500)
                                                                                                                                                         


Capital contribution



40,053
 


Capital assets purchased                                                                                                                                                     
(41,053)


                                                  




Net cash provided by capital and related financing activities


151,195


CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES


Cash increase in internal balances


(295,779)




Net cash used for noncapital financing activities


(295,779)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES


Interest Income



100







Net cash provided by investing activities


100





Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

100

                                                            






  Cash And Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year


19,796






 

 

  Cash And Cash Equivalents, End Of Year

$           19,896









Reconciliation Of Operating Loss To Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities:


Operating Loss

$
          (5,840)



Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net




  
cash provided by operating activities:







Depreciation

                                                  147,339







Decrease in operational receivables

6,453









Decrease in prepaid expenses

489








Decrease in allowance for doubtful accounts

(10,000)
                                   







Increase in prepaid water accounts receivable

298

                                                          







Increase in compensated absences

4,663
                                                 







Decrease in deposits

(2,130)
                             







Decrease in accrued liabilities

(17,084)                                         







Decrease in accrued salaries

(3,880)
                                           







Decrease in accrued payroll taxes

(297)
                                              







Increase in pension expense per GASB Statement No. 68
                                                                                       
24,573

                                                             







Total adjustments


150,424


Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities

$
144,584


See independent auditors’ report and notes to the financial statements which are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2016

________________________________________________________________________________________________

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A – REPORTING ENTITY


The City operates under a Council form of government and provides the following services:  public safety (police and fire), streets, sanitation, water and sewer, and general and administrative.  In evaluating how to define the City, for financial reporting purposes, management has considered all potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the reporting entity was made by applying the criteria set forth in GAAP.  The basic but not the only criterion for including a potential component unit within the reporting entity is the governing body’s ability to exercise oversight responsibility. The most significant manifestation of this ability is financial interdependency. Other manifestations of the ability to exercise oversight responsibility include, but are not limited to, the selection of governing authority, the designation of management, the ability to significantly influence operations, and accountability for fiscal matters.  A second criterion used in evaluating potential component units is the scope of public service. Application of this criterion involves considering whether the activity benefits the City and/or its citizens, or whether the activity is conducted within the geographic boundaries of the City and is generally available to its citizens.  A third criterion used to evaluate potential component units for inclusion or exclusion from the reporting entity is the existence of special financing relationships, regardless of whether the City is able to exercise oversight responsibilities. Based upon the application of these criteria, the City is identified as a primary government and has determined that it has no component units. Therefore, the financial statements of the Organization include the operations of the City and no other governmental entities. Also, the City is not included in the financial statements of any other governmental reporting entity. 
B – GOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS BOARD (GASB) PRONOUNCEMENTS


The financial statements of the City of Liberty, South Carolina (the City) have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for established governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.  The more significant of the City’s accounting policies are described below.

The City of Liberty has adopted the following Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. However, some of the pronouncements have not had an impact on the City’s financial statements.
GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements The primary objective of GASB No. 62 is to directly incorporate the applicable guidance from certain FASB and AICPA pronouncements into the state and local government accounting and reporting standards.

GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position  This statement requires governments to report all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and a net position of the governments, which is the residual of all other elements presented in the entity’s statement of financial position.
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CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2016


________________________________________________________________________________________________

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
B–GOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS BOARD (GASB) PRONOUNCEMENTS (CONTINUED)


GASB Statement No. 64, Derivative Instruments, Application of Hedge Accounting Termination Provisions


This Statement clarifies whether an effective hedging relationship continues after the replacement of a swap


counterparty or a swap counterparty's credit support provider. Furthermore, this Statement sets forth criteria that establish when the effective hedging relationship continues and hedge accounting should continue to be applied. The City has not entered into any of these types of transactions. Therefore, the City’s financial statements have not been impacted by this Statement.

GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities This Statement requires governments to reclassify certain items as deferred outflows of resources that were previously reported as assets and to reclassify certain items as deferred inflows of resources that were previously reported as liabilities. This Statement also provides other financial reporting guidance related to the impact of the financial statement elements of deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. Specifically, the Statement amends the criteria for determining major funds and limits the use of the term deferred in financial statement presentations.

GASB Statement No. 66, Technical Corrections-2012-an Amendment of GASB Statements No. 10 and No. 62 This

Statement amends Statement No. 10, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Risk Financing and Related Insurance Issues, by removing the provision that limits fund-based reporting of any entity's risk financing activities to the general fund and the internal service fund type. This resulted in governments basing their decisions about fund type classification on the nature of the activity to be reported. However, the City’s financial statements have not been impacted by this Statement.


GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions This Statement provides guidance on a state or local government employer’s accounting and reporting for employee pensions. Under this Statement, the employer is to recognize a net pension liability measured as of a date (the measurement date) no earlier than the end of its prior fiscal year. Also, if a state or local government employer makes a contribution to a defined benefit pension plan between the measurement date of the reported net pension liability and the end of the employer’s reporting period, the Statement requires the employer to recognize its contributions as deferred outflows of resources in the statement of net position. In addition, the Statement requires recognition of deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources in the statement of net position for changes that arise from other types of events in the net pension liability of a state or local government employer. Moreover, the Statement requires the employer to adjust the beginning net position balance for what the amount would have been if the Statement had been implemented in the employer’s prior reporting period. Specifically, the beginning net position balance should be adjusted for the following items determined as of the measurement date of the beginning net pension liability: the net pension liability; contributions made by the employer; and any deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources, if determinable. Contributions made by the employer subsequent to the measurement date of the net pension liability are now required to be recognized as deferred outflows of resources in the statement of net positon. However, GASB Statement No. 68 further states that the beginning net position should not be adjusted for any deferred outflows of resources, including contributions made subsequent to the measurement date of the beginning net pension liability, or any deferred inflows of resources if it is not practical to determine all of the amounts. This requirement under the Statement was later amended with the adoption of GASB Statement No.71, which is explained below.

-15-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2016


________________________________________________________________________________________________

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
B–GOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS BOARD (GASB) PRONOUNCEMENTS (CONTINUED)

GASB Statement No. 69, Government Combinations and Disposals of Government Operations This Statement establishes the accounting and financial reporting standards for government combinations and disposals of government operations. The term government combinations refers to a variety of arrangements including mergers, acquisitions, and transfers of operations that do not constitute entire legally separate entities in which no significant consideration is exchanged. The disposal of a government's operations results in the removal of specific government activities. The Statement addresses the accounting and reporting for government operations that have been disposed of by transfer or sale. Since the adoption of this Statement, the City has not engaged in any combinations or disposals referred to in this Statement. Therefore, the City’s financial statements have not been impacted by this Statement.

GASB Statement No. 70, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Financial Guarantees This Statement addresses the accounting and financial reporting for governments that extend financial guarantees for the obligations of another government, a not-for-profit organization, a private entity, or individual without directly receiving equal or approximately equal value in exchange. Specifically, the Statement requires the government to recognize a liability when any qualitative factors and historical data indicate that it is more likely than not that the government will be required to make a payment on the guarantee. Furthermore, the Statement requires the government to report the obligation until legally released as an obligor. Since the adoption of this Statement, the City has not guaranteed the financial obligations of any other entity. Therefore, the City’s financial statements have not been impacted by this Statement.

GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date This Statement is an amendment to paragraph 137 of GASB Statement No. 68. Before this amendment, paragraph 137 of GASB Statement No. 68 stated that if it was not practical for an employer to determine the amounts for all deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources as related to pensions, then the beginning net position balance should not be adjusted for any deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources. However, this could result in a significant understatement of the employer’s beginning net position and expense. Therefore, this Statement amends paragraph 137 of GASB Statement No. 68 to require that upon implementation of GASB Statement No. 68, a government is to adjust its beginning net position balance for contributions made subsequent to the measurement date of the beginning net pension liability. GASB Statement No. 68 continues to require that the beginning net position be adjusted for other deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources only if it is practical to determine such amounts upon implementation of the statement. This was not amended by GASB Statement No. 71.
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________________________________________________________________________________________________

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
B–GOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS BOARD (GASB) PRONOUNCEMENTS (CONTINUED)


GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application This Statement addresses several accounting and financial reporting issues regarding fair value measurements. Specifically, this Statement provides guidance for determining a fair value measurement for investments for financial reporting purposes as well as guidance for applying fair value to certain investments and disclosures related to all fair value measurements. Also, donated capital assets, donated works of art, historical treasures, and similar assets and capital assets were previously required to be measured at fair value. However, this Statement now requires measurement at acquisition value (an entry price). The Statement defines acquisition value as “the price that would be paid to acquire an asset with equivalent service potential in an orderly market transaction at the acquisition date, or the amount at which a liability could be liquidated with the counterparty at the acquisition date”.

GASB Statement No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets That are Not Within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68 This Statement establishes accounting and reporting requirements of defined benefit pensions and defined contribution plans that are outside of the scope of GASB Statement No. 68 as well as for the assets accumulated for providing those pensions. Furthermore, this Statement amends certain provisions of Statements No. 67 and No. 68. The City’s defined benefit pension plan is within the scope of GASB Statement No. 68. Therefore, the adoption of this Statement will not have an impact on the City’s financial statements.
GASB Statement No. 76, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State and Local Governments This Statement amends paragraphs 64, 72, and 82 in the GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. Furthermore, this Statement identifies the hierarchy of generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) used to prepare financial statements of state and local governmental entities in conformity with GAAP and the framework for the selection of those principles. This Statement supersedes the GASB Statement No. 55, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State and Local Governments, which placed the GAAP hierarchy in four categories: officially established accounting principles, which included GASB Statements and GASB Interpretations; GASB Technical Bulletins specifically applicable to state and local governmental entities and cleared by the GASB; AICPA Practice Bulletins specifically applicable to state and local governmental entities and cleared by the GASB; and Implementation Guides published by the GASB staff as well as widely recognized and prevalent practices in state and local government. GASB Statement No. 76 reduces the GAAP hierarchy to two categories of authoritative GAAP: Category A and Category B. Category A includes officially established accounting principles set by the GASB and GASB Interpretations, and Category B includes GASB Technical Bulletins; GASB Implementation Guides; and literature of the AICPA cleared by the GASB. This Statement also addresses the use of authoritative and nonauthoritative literature in the event that accounting treatment for a specific transaction or event is not specified within a source of authoritative GAAP. Some examples of nonauthoritative literature are GASB Concepts Statements, Pronouncements and other literature of the Financial Accounting Standards Board, and literature of other professional associations or regulatory agencies. The requirements of this Statement apply to all state and local governmental entities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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________________________________________________________________________________________________

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
B–GOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS BOARD (GASB) PRONOUNCEMENTS (CONTINUED)

GASB Statement No. 79, Certain External Investment Pools and Pool Participants This Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for external investment pools and provides criteria for pools to measure its investments at amortized cost as opposed to fair value. If an external pool meets the criteria to measure its investments at amortized cost, all of the participants in the pool should also measure their investments at amortized cost. Otherwise, the participants in the pool should measure their investments in the pool at fair value. Specifically, the criteria address how the external investment pool transacts with participants; requirements for portfolio maturity, quality, diversification, and liquidity; and calculation and requirements of a shadow price. An investment pool should follow GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools, as amended, if the investment pool does not meet the criteria established in Statement No. 79. The City does not have any external investment pools nor is it a pool participant. Therefore, until the City acquires an external investment pool or becomes a pool participant, the adoption of this Statement will not have an impact on the City’s financial statements.
For the year ending June 30, 2017, the City plans to adopt the following Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncement.

GASB Statement No. 82, Pension Issues This Statement addresses certain issues that have been raised regarding three of the GASB Statements that deal with the accounting and financial reporting of pensions: GASB Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, and GASB Statement No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets That Are Not Within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68.  The specific issues that this Statement addresses regards the presentation of payroll-related measures in required supplementary information, the selection of assumptions and the treatment of deviations from the guidance in an Actuarial Standard of Practice for financial reporting purposes, and the classification of payments made by employers to satisfy employee (plan member) contribution requirements. GASB Statements No. 67 and No. 68 required presentation of covered-employee payroll and ratios that are measured using covered-employee payroll in the schedules of the required supplementary information prior to the issuance of GASB Statement No. 82. Covered-employee payroll is the payroll of employees that are provided with pensions through the pension plan. This payroll-related measure refers to the payroll of only active employees in the pension plan and excludes the payroll of certain other employees for which contributions may have been made to the pension plan. This Statement has amended Statements 67 and 68 to require the presentation of covered payroll, which is defined as the payroll on which contributions to a pension plan are based. This payroll-related measure will include all payroll on which contributions to a pension plan are based regardless of whether and employee is active or inactive. Also, any ratios presented in the schedules of the required supplementary information will now be measured using covered payroll as opposed to covered-employee payroll. Furthermore, this Statement clarifies the methodology to use in the selection of assumptions in determining the total pension liability and related measures in order to conform with GASB Statement No. 67 and Statement No. 68. Moreover, the Statement clarifies that payments made by an employer to satisfy contribution requirements that are identified as plan member contribution requirements should be classified as plan member contributions for purposes of Statement No. 67 and as employee contributions for purposes of Statement No. 68. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2016, with the exception of the requirements that pertain to the selection of assumptions. In the event that an employer’s pension liability is measured as of a date other than the employer’s most recent fiscal year-end, the requirements that pertain to the selection of assumptions are effective for that employer in the first reporting period in which the measurement date of the pension liability is on or after June 15, 2017.
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________________________________________________________________________________________________

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C - BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements include the government-wide financial statements and the fund financial statements. Each set of financial statements have been reported using a measurement focus and a basis of accounting. The measurement focus refers to what is reported in the financial statements, either current financial resources or both current and non-current financial resources. The basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. The basis of accounting relates to the timing of the measurement made, regardless of the measurement focus applied.

Government-wide financial statements
The government-wide financial statements include the statement of net position and the statement of activities. The focus of the government-wide statements is on the operating results and financial position of the government as an economic entity. These statements report information about the City as a whole. Specifically, these statements report information about the governmental and business-type activities. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Furthermore, no fiduciary funds or component units were included in the statements.
The government-wide statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under the economic resources measurement focus, all assets and liabilities (whether current or non-current) are included in the statement of net position, and the operating statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net position. Revenues are recorded when earned, and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. This approach differs from the manner in which governmental fund financial statements are prepared. Governmental fund financial statements therefore include a reconciliation with brief explanations to better identify the relationship between the government-wide statements and the statements for governmental funds. 
The government-wide statement of activities presents a comparison between the direct expenses and program revenues for each function or program of the City’s governmental and business-type activities. Governmental activities, which are normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues or from other nonexchange revenue sources such as grants, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges to external parties for goods and services. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which each business segment or governmental function is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the City.
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C - BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements include the governmental fund financial statements and the proprietary fund financial statements. The focus of fund financial statements is on the major funds. Separate financial statements are provided for the governmental fund and the proprietary fund.
The governmental fund financial statements include the balance sheet and the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance. Governmental fund financial statements are prepared using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the current financial resources measurement focus, current financial resources and current liabilities are reported in the balance sheet for each major governmental fund and for any nonmajor funds in the aggregate. Furthermore, the sources (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and uses (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) of current financial resources are reported in the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance. Also, under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual; i.e., when they become both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgements, are recorded only when payment is due. 

The General Fund is the government’s primary operating fund. It is the only major fund reported in the City’s financial statements, and it accounts for all financial resources of the general government.
The proprietary fund financial statements include the statement of fund net position; the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in fund net position; and the statement of cash flows. The proprietary fund statement of fund net position and the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in fund net position are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The statement of cash flows reports the cash inflows and the cash outflows from the government’s operating, capital and related financing, noncapital financing, and investing activities as well as the net increase or decrease in cash. The direct method is used to report the cash flows from operating activities on the statement of cash flows. Use of the direct method involves reporting the actual cash inflows and the actual cash outflows from the government’s operating activities. Receipts from customers is an example of a cash inflow from the operating activities. Payments to vendors and employees are examples of cash outflows from the operating activities. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C - BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fund Financial Statements (Continued)
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating revenues and expenses. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the proprietary fund are water and sewer billings. Operating expenses for the proprietary fund include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. Furthermore, any revenues from capital contributions and additions to the principal of permanent and term endowments; special and extraordinary items; and transfers are reported on the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in fund net position. Any other revenues or expenses outside of these classifications are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. Examples of other revenues and expenses include interest income, interest expense, and the gain or loss on the disposal of fixed assets.
The government reports the following major proprietary fund:

The Water and Sewer Fund accounts for the activities of the utility services.
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
D. FINANCIAL STATEMENT ELEMENTS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments with a maturity date within three months of the date acquired by the government. 

Deposits and Investments

Section 6-5-10 of the SC Code of Laws outlines authorized investments for political subdivisions. The South Carolina Code of Laws authorize the City to invest in certificates of deposits, savings accounts, repurchase agreements, the State Treasurer’s Local Government Investment Pool (invested in government guaranteed securities), obligations of the U.S. Government, and government agencies unconditionally guaranteed by the U. S. Government. The City has chosen to adhere to the SC Code of Laws regarding the type of investments that it is allowed to make as opposed to formally adopting its own deposit and investment policy.
The City holds investments in certificates of deposits with the First Citizens Bank. These certificates of deposits were initially reported at cost at acquisition and have since been adjusted annually for any interest income earned. The City’s policy for determining which investments to report at a cost-based measure adheres strictly to GASB Statement No. 72 Fair Value Measurement and Application. According to this Statement, although investments generally should be measured and reported at fair value, certain types of investments should be excluded from measurement at fair value. These investments include the following categories: (1) money market investments and participating interest-earning investment contracts that have a remaining maturity at time of purchase of one year or less and (2) investments in life insurance other than investments in life settlement contracts, nonparticipating interest-earning investment contracts, unallocated contracts, and synthetic guaranteed investment contracts that are fully benefit-responsive. The term participating refers to whether the investment is able to capture market (interest rate) changes through the investment’s negotiability or transferability, or redemption terms that consider market rates. Most certificates of deposits are nonparticipating interest-earning investment contracts because their redemption terms do not consider market rates. The certificates of deposits held by the City are nonparticipating interest-earning investment contracts. Unallocated contracts transfer the obligation for future benefits to the insurance company. Life settlement contracts are entered into as an investment and lack an insurable interest. Synthetic guaranteed investment contracts are group annuity contracts or other agreements that establish the insurer’s obligations by reference to a segregated portfolio of assets that is not owed by the insurer.
Investments may be subject to various risks such as foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, and credit risk. Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment or a deposit. Investments that are mostly denominated in a particular foreign currency may be subject to this type of risk. Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations.  The City does not have any deposit or investment policies related to credit risk, concentration of credit risk, interest rate risk, and foreign currency risk.

The City is not a participant in an external investment pool, which is an arrangement that commingles or pools money of more than one legally separate entity and invests the money on the participants’ behalf. Furthermore, no significant assumptions have been disclosed regarding the estimation of fair value of any investments held by the City because the City does not hold any investments that are required to be measured and reported at fair value.
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D. FINANCIAL STATEMENT ELEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Deposits and Investments (Continued)
Section 330.15 of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation’s regulations governs the insurance coverage of the accounts for public units, which includes states, counties, municipalities, or any political subdivisions of the public units. According to Section 330.15, the insurance coverage of public unit accounts depends upon the type of deposit and the location of the official custodian, which is the party who has custody of the collateral for the deposits. If the public unit and the public unit’s official custodian are located in the same state, then all time and savings deposits owned by the public unit are combined and insured up to $250,000. Also, all demand deposits owned by the public unit are combined and separately insured up to $250,000. However, if the public unit and the public unit’s official custodian are located in different states, time; savings; and demand deposits owned by the public unit are combined and insured up to $250,000. In other words, time and savings deposits would not be insured separately from demand deposits.
At June 30, 2016, the City’s demand deposits and time deposits had a carrying amount of $675,040 and $19,896, respectively. Therefore, the total carrying amount of both the demand and time deposits was $694,936. The City’s demand deposits and time deposits had a bank balance of $705,692 and $19,896, respectively. The total bank balance of the demand deposits and the time deposits was $725,588. Of the total bank balance, $250,000 was covered by federal depository insurance, and $475,588 was collateralized by securities held in escrow by Wells Fargo, NA, an independent third-party entity. Since the City and Wells Fargo, NA are located in different states, the City’s demand deposits were not separately insured from the City’s time deposits.
-23-
CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2016


________________________________________________________________________________________________

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D. FINANCIAL STATEMENT ELEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Receivables and Payables

Outstanding balances between funds are reported as “internal balances”, which are the net residual amounts due between the governmental and business-type activities. Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance reserve account in the applicable governmental fund to indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources. There were no advances between funds that were reported in the financial statements. Furthermore, the internal balances have been reported as an interfund receivable for the business-type activities and as an interfund payable for the governmental activities. 
Property taxes, other than vehicle taxes, are normally levied in October and are payable without penalty through the following January 15th. Vehicle taxes are assessed and collected on a monthly, cyclical basis. By contract the City has authorized Pickens County to assess and collect all vehicle taxes. These collections are remitted to the City of Liberty by the Pickens County Treasurer. 

Receivables in the General Fund are 12% taxes, 80% due from other governments, 4% grant receivable, and 4% other receivables. The due from other governments’ balance consisted of the following amounts at June 30, 2016:

Due From Other Governments

  Due from State of South Carolina – General Fund:


Local option sales tax distributions
$
62,897

Aid to subdivision distributions

17,630

Merchants inventory tax

1,662

                      
  Due from Pickens County


Property taxes
92,137 

C Funds
51,906

                                                                                         
                           
Dispatch services
10,000

                                                                               
                           
Fire protection 
42,500

                                                                                          

Part-time wage reimbursement for the Fire Department 
6,025

                                  
  
Reimbursement for the Recreation Department
711 

                                                          


 
School resource officer reimbursement from the school dist.
17,750
                         


 Municipal Association of South Carolina
5,231 

                                                            


 SC Regional Housing Authority
3,959

                                                                           


 Internal Revenue Service                                                                
1,341

                                                                            


Total due from other governments
$
313,749                                                   
Receivables in the Water and Sewer Fund are 28% accounts receivable, 58% grants receivable, and 14% due from other governments. Receivables in the General Fund and in the Water and Sewer Fund are expected to be received within the subsequent year.
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D. FINANCIAL STATEMENT ELEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Prepaid Items

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit at least one period beyond the end of the fiscal year are recorded as prepaid items.
Restricted Cash
Restricted cash in the General Fund consists of fines, assessments, and surcharges retained by the City for the purpose of victims’ assistance. Furthermore, restricted cash in the General Fund consists of donations to the Police Department that have been designated for drug seizures. The State collects a 1% surcharge on liability insurance policies and distributes a portion of the collections to Pickens County who in turn distributes a proportionate share to the City. The City has designated these proceeds from the State in addition to proceeds from fundraisers and donations to be used for various operating expenses incurred by the Fire Department. Restricted cash in the General Fund also consists of the revenue generated by the hospitality tax to be used by the City exclusively for recreation and tourism development.

Such General Fund resources are included in cash on the financial statements and consist of the following:

                                      
Local law enforcement and victims’ assistance      
$   48,527

Recreation and tourism

32,340

Drug seizures

3,936

  
Fire Department operating expenses 
   14,379          
                                     
Total restricted cash in General Fund                      
$   99,182
Restricted cash in the Water and Sewer Fund consists of certain resources set aside for the repayment of certain designated expenses. The restricted cash is limited by applicable bond covenants. Such resources are included in cash on the statement

of net position and consist of the following:

Reserve for contingency

$
9,948

Reserve for depreciation

     9,948
                                     
Total restricted cash in Water and Sewer Fund
$
19,896
The “contingency” account is used to report resources set aside to meet unexpected contingencies. The “depreciation” account is used to report resources set aside to fund asset renewals and replacements. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D. FINANCIAL STATEMENT ELEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Capital Assets
Capital assets, which include property, plant, and equipment, are reported in the governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $500 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at their entry prices at the date of donation.
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs (repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or materially extend the assets’ lives) are not capitalized.

Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government is depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives:











Estimated


                    Assets                                                                      Useful Lives                     

         
Buildings

10-40
Years


Roads, sidewalks, and city lots                                             7-20
Years


Building Improvements                                                        4-15
Years


Vehicles

 3-5
Years


Machinery and equipment
 3-10
Years


Furniture & fixtures
 5
Years


Software

 3
Years

Pensions

The net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources related to pensions, deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and the pension expense were all actuarially determined. 

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D. FINANCIAL STATEMENT ELEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Compensated Absences
It is the City’s policy to permit full-time employees to accumulate limited amounts of earned vacation leave. Upon separation from service, employees receive payment for a portion of unused vacation leave subject to length of service and contract classification. All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. In the governmental fund financial statements, the current portion of compensated absences is the amount expected to be paid using expendable and available financial resources and is reported as an expenditure and a fund liability in the fund that will pay for them. The remainder of the compensated absences liability is not reported. The City did not report any compensated absences in the government fund financial statements. However, the City did report the compensated absences liability in the government-wide statement of net position and the related expense in the government-wide statement of activities.
Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, all liabilities are reported in the statement of net position. In general, payables and accrued liabilities that will be paid from governmental funds are reported on the government-wide financial statements regardless of whether they will be liquidated with current resources. However, claims and judgments, the noncurrent portion of capital leases, and compensated absences that will be paid from governmental funds are reported as a liability in the fund financial statements only to the extent they will be paid with current, expendable available financial resources. In general, payments made within sixty days after year end are considered to have been made with current available financial resources. Long-term obligations that will be paid from governmental funds are not recognized as a liability in the fund financial statements until due. Furthermore, the governmental fund financial statements recognize the proceeds of debt as other financing sources of the current period.
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D. FINANCIAL STATEMENT ELEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations (Continued)
Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2016 was as follows:











                                        Due

    
        

       Beginning





      Ending
        Within One

         

  
         Balance
       Additions         Reductions             
      Balance                    Year                 
Governmental
Activities:

Compensated absences
$
46,954
$
37,212
$
-

$
84,166
$
          -




Capital lease obligations 
      200,831

39,404

(55,273)

184,962

59,481









                    

Bonds payable
48,999

  
          (48,999)
                  -
                                -   
SCRS net pension liability

531,776

97,748

-


629,524

-




        




PORS net pension liability
   
1,202,930

236,279

-

1,439,209

-
Total Governmental

Activities
$
2,031,490
$
410,643
$
(104,272)

 $2,337,861              $     
59,481
Business-type 
Activities:
Compensated absences
$
12,474
$
4,662
$
-
$
17,136
$
          -


 

Bonds payable

149,828

180,000

(13,813)


316,015

74,504


                           



SCRS net pension liability
   
  286,361

98,516

-

384,877

-
Total Business-type

Activities
$   
448,663
$
283,178
$
(13,813)
$     718,028              $      74,504
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D. FINANCIAL STATEMENT ELEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Net Position and Fund Balance

Net position in government-wide financial statements are classified as invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted; and unrestricted. The component of net position classified as invested in capital assets, net of related debt consists of capital assets, including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Restricted net position represents constraints on resources that are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulation of other governments, or imposed by law through state statute. Unrestricted net position consists of net position that do not meet the definition of “restricted” or “invested in capital assets, net of related debt”.  

In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balance is composed of five classifications designed to disclose the hierarchy of constraints placed on how the fund balance can be spent.

The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows:

Nonspendable fund balance – This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted fund balance – This classification includes amounts that are restricted to specific purposes externally by creditors or imposed by law.

Committed fund balance – This classification is the portion of the fund balance that can only be used for specific purposes imposed by majority vote by the City of Liberty’s governing body (highest level of decision-making authority). Any changes or removal of specific purpose requires majority action by the governing body.

Assigned fund balance – This classification is the portion of the fund balance that the City of Liberty intends to use for specific purposes as established by the City’s Council or by the City’s Mayor.

Unassigned fund balance – This classification is the portion of the fund balance that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes or other funds.

Unless specifically designated otherwise, fund expenditures and encumbrances are from restricted fund balance to the extent of restricted fund balance revenue, followed by committed fund balance, assigned fund balance, and unassigned fund balance, respectively.
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D. FINANCIAL STATEMENT ELEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Revenues – Exchange and Nonexchange Transactions 

Both exchange and nonexchange transactions have been reported in the financial statements. Exchange transactions are transactions where the City and another party either received or gave up essentially equal value. Exchange transactions include revenues from business licenses, athletic fees, juvenile fees, environmental fees, garbage collection fees, water billings, and sewer billings. Nonexchange transactions are transactions where the City either gave up or received value without directly receiving or giving up equal value in return. Nonexchange transactions include property tax revenues, donations, grants, and other financial assistance. In the government-wide financial statements, revenues resulting from exchange transactions are recorded on the accrual basis of accounting when the exchange takes place. In the fund financial statements, revenues are recorded on the modified accrual basis of accounting in the year in which resources are measurable and available. For the City, available means collected within the current year or within 60 days after year-end. Nonexchange transactions are recorded on the accrual basis of accounting in the government-wide financial statements in the year when all eligibility requirements have been met. Timing, matching, and expenditure requirements are all types of eligibility requirements. Timing requirements specify the period when resources are required to be used, the period when use may begin, or that the resources are required to be maintained intact in perpetuity or until a specified date or event has occurred. Matching requirements specify the amount of resources the City must provide for a specific purpose. Under expenditure requirements, the City is reimbursed for resources expended. Nonexchange transactions are recorded on the modified accrual basis in the fund financial statements where revenues must be available before they can be recognized.

Expenditures (Expenses)

Expenditures (Expenses) are recognized when the related liability has been incurred.
Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the City’s financial position and results of operations and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Two examples of estimates include the collectibility of the accounts receivable and the useful lives of the fixed assets.  Actual results could differ from these estimates.
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NOTE 2 – RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the government-wide statement of net position
The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance – total governmental fund and net position- governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of net position. One element of the reconciliation states that capital assets used in government activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental fund but are reported in the government-wide statement of net position.

Capital assets, net of depreciation      
$
1,930,471
                                                  



Pickens County C funds, deferred inflows of resources in the governmental fund, are susceptible to full accrual in the government-wide statement of net position. This is the additional deferred inflows of resources that have been taken into income in the government-wide statements.
                      Deferred inflows of resources, Pickens County C funds
$
51,906



Property taxes, deferred inflows of resources in the governmental fund, are susceptible to full accrual in the government-wide statement of net position. This is the additional deferred inflows of resources that have been taken into income in the government-wide statements.


Deferred inflows of resources, property taxes
$
89,413



Another element of the reconciliation states that accrued interest expense is recorded in the government-wide statements but is not recorded in the governmental fund. This is the additional accrued interest recorded in the government-wide statement of net position.


Accrued interest expense
$
(1,191)

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance – total governmental fund and net position– governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of net position. Another element of that reconciliation explains that “long-term liabilities (not due and payable in the next fiscal year) are not reported on the governmental fund balance sheet. The difference of $2,382,113 consists of capital leases payable of $184,962, SCRS net pension liability of $673,776, PORS net pension liability of $1,439,209, and compensated absences payable of $84,166.

 
Capital leases
$
(184,962)




SCRS net pension liability

(673,776)

PORS net pension liability

(1,439,209)


Compensated absences

(84,166)


Total
$
(2,382,113)
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NOTE 2 – RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the government-wide statement of net position (Continued)

Furthermore, the government-wide statement of net position reports the SCRS and PORS retirement contributions made subsequent to the measurement date of June 30, 2015 as deferred outflows of resources in the government-wide statement of net position. Also, various other deferred outflows of resources related to pensions are reported in the government-wide statement of net position. The details of this $336,736 difference are as follows:


SCRS net difference between expected and actual experience
$
11,185

PORS net difference between expected and actual experience

28,525



SCRS net difference between expected and actual earnings

4,214


PORS net difference between expected and actual earnings

15,747


SCRS deferred amounts from changes in proportionate share

68,170


PORS deferred amounts from changes in proportionate share

52,621


PORS retirement contributions subsequent to measurement date

125,049



SCRS retirement contributions subsequent to measurement date

31,225

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balance-



total governmental funds to arrive at changes in net position


of governmental activities
$
336,736
Lastly, the reconciliation explains that the net difference between the expected and the actual investment earnings as related to pensions is reported as a deferred inflow of resources in the government-wide statement of net position. The detail of this $1,126 difference is as follows:

SCRS net difference between expected and actual 


investment earnings
$
(1,126)

Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balance-



total governmental funds to arrive at changes in net position


of governmental activities
$
(1,126)
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NOTE 2 – RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance and the government-wide statement of activities 

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance includes a reconciliation between net changes in fund balance – total governmental fund and changes in net position of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. One element of that reconciliation explains that “The governmental fund reports capital outlays as expenditures in the year of purchase. However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.” The details of this $379,275 difference are as follows:


Capital outlay (current year)
$
612,011

Depreciation expense
 
 (232,736)

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances-




total governmental fund to arrive at changes in net position


of governmental activities                                                                        
$
379,275
Another element of the reconciliation states that “payments on long-term debt are reported as expenditures in the governmental fund. The same payments reduce long-term liabilities in the statement of net position.” The details of this difference are as follows:




Principal repayments:



Bonds payable
$
48,999







Capital leases

55,276


Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balance-



total governmental fund to arrive at changes in net position



of governmental activities                                                                        
$
104,275
Also, the reconciliation explains that retirement contributions made subsequent to the measurement date are not reported in the statement of activities but are reported as deferred outflows of resources in the statement of net position. However, the actual pension expense reported in the statement of activities is the City’s proportionate share of the annual change in the SCRS and PORS net pension liabilities. The details of this $57,991 difference are as follows:


SCRS retirement contributions subsequent to

                     
the measurement date of 06/30/15
$
31,225

 

SCRS proportionate pension expense

(72,265)

PORS retirement contributions subsequent to


the measurement date of 06/30/15

125,049

PORS proportionate pension expense

(142,000)


Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances-


total governmental fund to arrive at changes in net position


of governmental activities                                                                     
$
(57,991)
-33-
CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2016


________________________________________________________________________________________________

NOTE 2 – RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance and the government-wide statement of activities (Continued)

Pickens County C funds, deferred inflows of resources in the governmental fund, are
not recognized as income until receipt. In the government-wide statements, the Pickens
County C funds are recognized on the full accrual basis.
Adjustment due to the net increase in deferred inflows of resources
$
51,906
Property taxes, deferred inflows of resources in the governmental fund, are

not recognized as income until receipt. In the government-wide statements, property

taxes are recognized on the full accrual basis.



Adjustment due to the net increase in deferred inflows of resources
$
7,067

Accrued interest expense is not recognized on the governmental

fund statements. Accrued interest is recognized and reported on the

government-wide statements.

Adjustment due to the net decrease in accrued interest expense, a 

reduction in expenses. 
$
1,384


Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not

require the use of current financial resources and are not

reported as expenditures in the governmental fund. These include

the net increase in compensated absences, an increase in expenses.
$
(37,212)
The governmental fund reports capital lease obligations as other financing

sources. However, in the government-wide statements, capital lease obligations are 

reported as additional liabilities.


$
(39,404)


        
The governmental fund reports the proceeds from the sale of fixed assets as an increase

in financial resources. However, in the government-wide statements, only the gain on the sale

of the fixed asset is reported.
$
(9,744)
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NOTE 3 – STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Budgetary information 
Budgets and Budgetary Accounting: As set forth in the City Charter, the City Council adopts an annual budget for the General Fund and the Water and Sewer Fund. The annual budget for the General Fund is prepared in accordance with the basis of accounting utilized by that fund. The budget for the Water and Sewer Fund is adopted under a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles, except that depreciation and amortization are not considered. Additionally, cash outlay for debt principal and fixed assets funded by operations are budgeted, but treated differently in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. After joint workshops with the City Council, the Mayor submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget covering the General Fund and the Water and Sewer Fund for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1. These workshops and hearings are open to the public. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means for financing them. Prior to the beginning of the fiscal year, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance. Appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year.

The Mayor is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts within departments within any fund; however, any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund or transfer amounts between departments must be approved by the City Council. The presented budgeted amounts are as originally adopted or as last amended by the City Council. There are no reported differences between the original budget and the final budget. 
Tax Increment Financing (TIF) For Redevelopment Projects

According to Section 31-6 of the South Carolina Code of Laws, tax increment funds are to be used for the payment of obligations issued for redevelopment project costs for a designated redevelopment project area. These projects include any buildings, street improvements, road improvements, highway improvements, water drainage facilities, sewer drainage facilities, storm drainage facilities, parking facilities, tourism and recreation-related facilities, energy production or transmission infrastructure, communications technology, and public transportation infrastructure. A redevelopment project area is an area within the municipality, which is not less in the aggregate than one and one-half acres where conditions have been identified that result in the area being classified as an agricultural area, a blighted area, a conservation area, or a combination thereof. Any tax increment funds received by a municipality are required to be maintained in a special tax allocation fund pursuant to the Code of Laws. Furthermore, upon the payment of all redevelopment project costs, the retirement of all obligations issued, and the distribution of any surplus tax increment funds, the municipality shall adopt an ordinance dissolving the tax allocation fund for the project redevelopment area. Also, the municipality shall terminate the prior designations of any areas as redevelopment project areas. As of June 30, 2016, all obligations issued by the City under Section 31-6 of the Code of Laws were retired. Also, the City remitted a $14,076 settlement to the taxing districts for surplus TIF funds that were not remitted annually by the City in prior years. According to the Code of Laws, any TIF funds remaining after payment of debt service must be remitted annually to the taxing districts. The City does not owe any additional remittance to the taxing districts. Moreover, the City adopted an ordinance dissolving the tax allocation fund and terminated the project redevelopment area designation in accordance with the Code of Laws subsequent to the year end.
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NOTE 3 – STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY (CONTINUED)
Crime Victim Funds

According to Section 14-1 of the South Carolina Code of Laws, revenue generated by a municipality from court fines and assessments must be properly allocated  to crime victim funds. Also, pursuant to Section 14-1 of the Code of Laws, any crime victim funds retained by the municipality are required to be maintained in a separate account for the exclusive purpose of providing victim services. Some of the allowable expenditures of these funds include salaries and benefits paid to personnel who perform direct services to crime victims, vehicle expenses incurred by the victim service provider, training and conference registration for personnel providing direct crime victim services, and telephone charges relating directly to crime victim services. No unallowable expenditures were identified for the year ended June 30, 2016.
Local Hospitality Tax

According to Section 6-1 of the South Carolina Code of Laws, a local governing body may impose by ordinance a local hospitality tax not to exceed two percent of the charges for food and beverages. Furthermore, all proceeds from a local hospitality tax must be maintained in a separate fund. The Code of Laws also places various restrictions on the proceeds from the local hospitality tax. Some of those restrictions are expenditures incurred for tourism-related buildings; tourism-related cultural, recreational, or historic facilities; highways, roads, streets, and bridges providing access to tourist destinations; and water and sewer infrastructure to serve tourism-related demand. No unallowable expenditures were identified for the year ended June 30, 2016.
Deficit in Net Position and Fund Balance
The statement of net position reported a net position of ($77,203) for the governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2016. This can be attributed mainly to the reporting requirements required by GASB Statement No. 68 for pension plans. These reporting requirements result in a reduction in the City’s financial position. Following is the adjusted net position for the governmental activities that has been modified to exclude the pension-related adjustments.

Unadjusted net position 


per the statement of net positon

$
(77,203)

Deferred outflows related to pensions 


per the statement of net position


(336,736)


Deferred inflows related to pensions

per the statement of net position


1,126


SCRS net pension liability 


per the statement of net position


673,776


PORS net pension liability

per the statement of net position

 
1,439,209

Adjusted net position

$
1,700,172
Without the pension-related adjustments, the City of Liberty’s net position would be the following:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt


1,930,471


Restricted



99,182

Unrestricted



(329,481)

Total adjusted net position

$
1,700,172
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NOTE 3 – STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY (CONTINUED)

Deficit in Net Position and Fund Balance (Continued)

A net change in fund balance of ($194,017) was reported for the General Fund for the year ended June 30, 2016. This resulted in a deficit General Fund balance of ($101,299). This is the second consecutive year that a negative change in fund balance has been reported for the General Fund. However, being that the City has consistently comingled its special revenue funds with the General Fund, the net change in fund balance along with the fund balance for the General Fund currently is and has been distorted. Had the special (restricted) revenues been separated from the General Fund, the net change in fund balance and the resulting fund balance for the General Fund would have been significantly lower in the current year and in prior years. In the current year, the resulting fund balance would have been approximately $99,000 lower than the existing fund balance reported in the General Fund. Therefore, the fund balance would have been approximately ($200,400). With this being the case, there is no doubt that the City is and has been experiencing financial distress. The City has had to utilize some of the special revenues in prior years in order to meet various obligations. Since the General Fund is the City’s main operating fund, a negative net change in fund balance should not continue to result. The City has a duty to its citizens to practice sound financial management over the financial resources. Therefore, the City has stated that it will make the necessary changes to improve the financial condition of the General Fund in the future. Specifically, the City will have to raise various fees and charges for public services and maximize its taxing power in an effort to generate an increase in General Fund revenues. Also, the City will need to perform a cost-benefit analysis of the services that it provides in an effort to align expenses with available resources. In addition, the City will begin to take the necessary steps to establish a long-term financial plan to ensure that the City does not continue to experience financial distress.
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NOTE 4 – CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2016 was as follows:

Primary Government



Beginning
Ending

 


 
Balance


Increases


Decreases


Balance

 
Governmental activities


Capital assets, not being depreciated


Land
$
114,668
$
-
$
-
$
114,668

Construction in progress

2,863

-

-

2,863
      Total capital assets not being depreciated

117,531 

-

-

117,531 


Capital assets being depreciated


Buildings and improvements
1,586,989
5,816
(10,000)
1,582,805

Machinery and equipment
774,124
11,250
(44,173)
741,201

Furniture and fixtures
12,092
-
(514)
11,578

Roads, sidewalks, and city lots
1,261,876
556,815
-
1,818,691

Software
32,004
-
-
32,004

Vehicles

1,048,567

38,130

(120,009)

966,688 


Total capital assets being depreciated

4,715,652

612,011

(174,696)

5,152,967

Less: accumulated depreciation for


Buildings
(1,057,574)
(56,334)
256
(1,113,652)

Machinery and equipment
(687,787)
(35,955)
43,628
(680,114)

Furniture and fixtures
(11,622)
(292)
488
(11,426)

Roads, sidewalks, and city lots
(657,740)
(64,941)
-
(722,681)


Software
(29,781)
(1,667)
-
(31,448)


Vehicles

(824,911)

(73,547)

117,752 

(780,706)

Total accumulated depreciation

(3,269,415)

(232,736)

162,124

(3,340,027)

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

1,446,237 

379,275

(12,572)

1,812,940 

Governmental activities capital assets, net
$
1,563,768 
$
379,275
$
(12,572)
$
1,930,471
Depreciation expense was charged to the functions/programs of the primary government as follows:


Governmental activities


    
General government



$
24,417


Police



45,206


Fire



19,894


Public works



86,154


Recreation




57,065

Total depreciation expense – governmental activities



$
232,736
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NOTE 4 – CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Business-type activities


Beginning
Ending

 


  Balance

  Increases 
  Decreases 


Balance


Capital assets not being depreciated


Land
$
6,414 
$
             -
$              - 
$
6,414
      Total capital assets not being depreciated

6,414 
 
          -

- 

6,414


Capital assets being depreciated


Building and system improvements

72,713
-
(4,075)
68,638

Machinery and equipment
421,816
-
(130,493)
291,323

Water and sewer lines
5,623,170
473,772
-
6,096,942

Software
21,208
-
-
21,208


Vehicles

137,184 

       -

       (14,032)

123,152

Total capital assets being depreciated
 
 6,276,091 

473,772
 
    (148,600)
 
 6,601,263

Less: accumulated depreciation for


Buildings and system improvements
(49,889)
(3,748)
4,075
(49,562)

Machinery and equipment
(403,551)
(2,987)
120,255
(286,283)

Water and sewer lines
(1,984,160)
(140,605)
-
(2,124,765)

Software
(21,208)
-
-
(21,208)


Vehicles
 
     (137,184)
 
    -

      14,032

(123,152)

Total accumulated depreciation

   (2,595,992)
 
  (147,340)

138,362
 
(2,604,970)

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

3,680,099 
 
  326,432

        (10,238)

3,996,293

Business-type activities capital assets, net
$
3,686,513
$
326,432
$      (10,238)
$
4,002,707
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NOTE 5 – LONG-TERM DEBT

Bonds payable of the proprietary fund consist of the following:


Water System Improvement Revenue Bonds, $362,500, 


series 1983, due in annual installments of $21,305 


including interest that accrues at 5.00% per annum and 

the maturity is in November 2023.



$ 136,015

General Obligation Bonds, $180,000, series 2016, due in 


annual installments of $60,000 plus interest at 2.170% per annum

and the maturity is in June 2019.



$
180,000

Total proprietary fund bonds payable



 $ 316,015
The following represents maturity of the proprietary fund bonds as of June 30, 2016:


June 30, 2017




74,504

June 30, 2018




75,229

June 30, 2019




75,991

June 30, 2020




16,791

June 30, 2021




17,630

Thereafter





55,870

Total proprietary fund bonds payable



$
316,015
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NOTE 5 -  LONG TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)  

Annual debt service requirements to amortize all bonds payable including interest outstanding of $41,933 are as follows:

                                                                             General                   Water



Year Ending
                Obligation
                System
   


     June 30              
    2016 Bonds    
       1983 Bonds      
      
  Total     
  



2017

$
63,602
$
21,305
$
84,907




2018

62,604
21,305
83,909




2019

61,302
21,305
82,607




2020

-
21,305
21,305


2021

-
21,305
21,305
                                         Thereafter
 
-

63,915

63,915


                         Total

$
187,508
$
170,440         
$
357,948














During the year ended June 30, 2016, the following changes occurred with the bonds payable:


Balance
Balance
Due



July 1, 2015


Additions


Reductions


June 30, 2016

Within 1 Year


Proprietary fund:



Revenue Bonds
$
149,828
$
-
($
13,813)
$
136,015
$
14,504


General Obligation Bonds

-

180,000

-

180,000

60,000

      Total 

$
149,828
$
180,000
  ($
13,813)
$
316,015
$
74,504
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NOTE 6 – CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS

The City has entered into a lease agreement as lessee to finance the acquisition of one 2014 Dodge Charger police vehicle.  The lease qualifies as a capital lease for accounting purposes and, therefore has been recorded at the present value of the future minimum lease payments as of the date of its inception. The following is a summary of the equipment leased under this capital lease agreement as of June 30, 2016:



               
  General Fund   





  Police vehicle


$
34,500
The following is a schedule of the future minimum lease payments (including interest at 1.47% per annum) required under the capital lease and the present value of the net minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2016:




                       Year Ending



June 30


General Fund





2017
$   11,840





2018
     11,840




 
$
23,680



Total minimum lease payments
$
23,680



Less:  amount representing interest


(512)




Present value of future minimum




lease payments


$
23,168 



-42-
CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2016


________________________________________________________________________________________________

NOTE 6 – CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)
The City has entered into a lease agreement as lessee to finance the acquisition of a 2015 Freightliner garbage truck for the Public Works Department. The lease qualifies as a capital lease for accounting purposes and, therefore has been recorded at the present value of the future minimum lease payments as of the date of its inception. The following is a summary of the equipment leased under this capital lease agreement as of June 30, 2016:



               
  General Fund   





  Public Works vehicle

$
133,383
The following is a schedule of the future minimum lease payments (including interest at 2.17% per annum) required under the capital lease and the present value of the net minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2016:




                       Year Ending



June 30


General Fund






2017
$
20,641




2018

20,641




2019

20,641




2020

20,641




2021

20,641




                        Thereafter

20,641




 
$
 123,846



Total minimum lease payments
$
123,846



Less:  amount representing interest


(8,383)




Present value of future minimum




lease payments


$
115,463
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NOTE 6 – CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)
The City has entered into a lease agreement as lessee to finance the acquisition of a 2005 Brush Truck for the Public Works Department. The lease qualifies as a capital lease for accounting purposes and, therefore has been recorded at the present value of the future minimum lease payments as of the date of its inception. The following is a summary of the equipment leased under this capital lease agreement as of June 30, 2016:



               
  General Fund   





  Public Works vehicle

$
49,015
The following is a schedule of the future minimum lease payments (including interest at 1.68% per annum) required under the capital lease and the present value of the net minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2016:




                       Year Ending



June 30


General Fund





2017
$
   16,890




 
$
   16,890



Total minimum lease payments
$
16,890



Less:  amount representing interest


(279)




Present value of future minimum




lease payments


$
16,611 
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NOTE 6 – CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)

The City has entered into a lease agreement as lessee to finance the acquisition of a 2015 Dodge Charger Police vehicle. The lease qualifies as a capital lease for accounting purposes and, therefore has been recorded at the present value of the future minimum lease payments as of the date of its inception. The following is a summary of the equipment leased under this capital lease agreement as of June 30, 2016:



               
  General Fund   





Police vehicle


$
39,404
The following is a schedule of the future minimum lease payments (including interest at 1.50% per annum) required under the capital lease and the present value of the net minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2016:




                       Year Ending



June 30


General Fund





2017
$
13,458




2018

13,458





2019

   3,364




 
$
   30,280



Total minimum lease payments
$
30,280



Less:  amount representing interest


(560)




Present value of future minimum




lease payments


$
29,720 
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NOTE 6- CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)

During the year ended June 30, 2016, the following changes occurred in capital leases:





 Balance



Balance
 Due




                                 July 1, 2015

Additions


Payments


June 30, 2016


Within 1 Year

Police vehicles
$
34,500
$
39,404
($
21,016)
$
52,888
$
  24,584
Public Works vehicles

166,331

-
 
    (34,257)

132,074

34,897
Total


$
200,831
$  39,404

($
55,273)
$
184,962
$
59,481


NOTE 7– OPERATING LEASES

The City has several non-cancelable operating leases for equipment that extend over the next five years. Rental expenses for operating leases during the year ended June 30, 2016 were approximately $4,300. Under the non-cancelable operating leases, the City is required to make contingent lease payments as opposed to minimum lease payments. These contingent lease payments are based on the City’s usage of the equipment. According to GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements, contingent lease payments are excluded from being disclosed. The City did not enter into any non-cancelable operating leases that required minimum lease payments. Therefore, as of June 30, 2016, there is no lease expense to disclose for the next five years.
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NOTE 8 – EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE PENSION PLAN

Plan descriptions. The South Carolina Retirement System (SCRS), a cost–sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan, was established effective July 1, 1945, pursuant to the provisions of Section 9-1-20 of the South Carolina Code of Laws for the purpose of providing retirement allowances and other benefits for employees of the state, its public school districts, and political subdivisions. The South Carolina Police Officers Retirement System (PORS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan, was established effective July 1, 1962, pursuant to the provisions of Section 9-11-20 of the South Carolina Code of Laws for the purpose of providing retirement allowances and other benefits for police officers and firemen of the state and its political subdivisions.
Membership. Membership requirements are prescribed in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws. Generally, all employees of covered employers are required to participate in and contribute to the system as a condition of employment. This plan covers general employees, teachers, and individuals newly elected to the South Carolina General Assembly beginning with the November 2012 general election. An employee member of the system with an effective date of membership prior to July 1, 2012, is a Class Two member. An employee member of the system with an effective date of membership on or after July 1, 2012, is a Class Three member. To be eligible for the PORS membership, an employee must be required by the terms of his employment, by election or appointment, to preserve public order, protect life and property, and detect crimes in the state; to prevent and control property destruction by fire; or to serve as a peace officer employed by the Department of Corrections, the Department of Juvenile Justice, or the Department of Mental Health. Probate judges and coroners may elect membership in the PORS. Magistrates are required to participate in the PORS for service as a magistrate. PORS members, other than magistrates and probate judges, must also earn at least $2,000 per year and devote at least 1,600 hours per year to work, unless exempted by statute. An employee member of the system with an effective date of membership prior to July 1, 2012, is a Class Two member. An employee member of the system with an effective date of membership on or after July 1, 2012, is a Class Three member.
Benefits provided. The SCRS and PORS provide retirement, disability, life insurance, and death benefits. Key elements of the benefit calculation include the benefit multiplier, years of service, and average final compensation. A SCRS Class Two member who has separated from service with at least five or more years of earned service is eligible for a monthly pension at age 65 or with 28 years credited service regardless of age. A member may elect early retirement with reduced pension benefits payable at age 55 with 25 years of service credit. A SCRS Class Three member who has separated from service with at least eight or more years of earned service is eligible for a monthly pension upon satisfying the Rule of 90 requirement. The total of the member’s age and the member’s creditable service has to equal at least 90 years. Both SCRS Class Two and Class Three members are eligible to receive a reduced deferred annuity at age 60 if they satisfy the five- or eight-year earned service requirement, respectively. An incidental death benefit is also available to beneficiaries of active and retired members of employers who participate in the death benefit program. The annual retirement allowance of eligible retirees or their surviving annuitants is increased by the lesser of one percent or five hundred dollars every July 1. Only those annuitants in receipt of a benefit on July 1 of the preceding year are eligible to receive the increase. Members who retire under the early retirement provisions at age 55 with 25 years of service are not eligible for the benefit adjustment until the second July 1 after reaching age 60 or the second July 1 after the date they would have had 28 years of service credit had they not retired.
-47-
CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2016
NOTE 8 – EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

A PORS Class Two member who has separated from service with at least five or more years of earned service is eligible for a monthly pension at age 55 or with 25 years of service regardless of age. A PORS Class Three member who has separated from service with at least eight or more years of earned service is eligible for a monthly pension at age 55 or with 27 years of service regardless of age. Both PORS Class Two and Class Three members are eligible to receive a deferred annuity at age 55 with five or eight years of earned service, respectively. An incidental death benefit is also available to beneficiaries of active and retired members of employers who participate in the death benefit program. Accidental death benefits are also provided upon the death of an active member working for a covered employer whose death was a natural and proximate result of an injury incurred while in the performance of duty.
Contributions. Per Title 9 of the SC Code of Laws, contribution requirements of the active employees and the participating employers are established and may be amended by PEBA. SCRS Class Two and Class Three members were required to contribute 8.16 percent of their annual pay for the year ended June 30, 2016. PORS Class Two and Class Three members were required to contribute 8.74 percent of their annual pay for the year ended June 30, 2016. The City’s contractually required contribution rate for SCRS Class Two and Class Three members for the year ended June 30, 2016 was 10.91 percent of the annual payroll and 13.34 percent of the annual payroll for PORS Class Two and Class Three members, actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with employee contributions, is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. Also, the City’s contractually required contribution rate for the incidental death benefit was 0.15 percent of the annual payroll for SCRS Class Two and Class Three members and 0.20 percent of the annual payroll for PORS Class Two and Class Three members. SCRS and PORS contributions to the pension plan by the City were $52,510 and $125,049, respectively, for the year ended June 30, 2016. Therefore, total SCRS and PORS contributions to the pension plan by the City were $177,559 for the year ended June 30, 2016.
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2016, the City reported liabilities of $1,058,653 for its proportionate share of the SCRS net pension liability and $1,439,209 for its proportionate share of the PORS net pension liability. Therefore, the total SCRS and PORS net pension liabilities were $2,497,862. The SCRS and PORS net pension liabilities were measured as of June 30, 2015, and the total pension liabilities used to calculate the SCRS and PORS net pension liabilities were determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2014. The City’s proportion of the SCRS and PORS net pension liabilities were based on a projection of the City’s long-term share of SCRS and PORS contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2015 measurement date, the City’s proportion of SCRS and PORS contributions were 0.005582% and 0.06603%, respectively.
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GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (Continued)
For the year ended June 30, 2016, the City recognized A SCRS pension expense of $118,124 and a PORS pension expense of $142,000. Therefore, the City recognized total SCRS and PORS pension expense of $260,124 for the year ended June 30, 2016. At June 30, 2016, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions for SCRS and PORS from the following sources:







Deferred Outflows                        Deferred Inflows






                  Of Resources                                Of Resources__







  SCRS            PORS
               SCRS            PORS
      Net difference between expected and 

      actual experience
$
18,808
$
28,525
$
1,893
$
           
      Net difference in deferred outflows due
      to change in proportionate share            

114,639

52,621

-

-



      Net difference between projected and

      actual investment earnings

7,086

15,747

-

-






   


           
      City of Liberty’s retirement contributions 

      subsequent to the measurement date

52,510

125,049

-

-

      Total
$
193,043
$
221,942
$
1,893
$  
-



For the year ended June 30, 2016, the current year SCRS contribution of $52,510 and PORS contribution of $125,049 were reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the City’s retirement contributions made subsequent to the measurement date of June 30, 2015. These will be recognized as a reduction of the SCRS and the PORS net pension liabilities for the year ending June 30, 2017. The net difference of $138,641 between the other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions for the SCRS and the net difference of $96,893 between the other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions for the PORS will be recognized in pension expense as follows:
           


           Year ending
               SCRS               PORS                 


                                     June 30, 2017
$
 40,764
$  
18,338
                                                  June 30, 2018                     40,764
18,338



           
                                                  June 30, 2019                     34,305
       17,078
                                                  June 30, 2020                     22,807
      43,139
                                                  Thereafter                                    -                      -         
                                                  Total
$   138,640        $  96,893
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GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

Actuarial assumptions. The total pension liability in the July 1, 2014 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement for the SCRS and the PORS:





                      SCRS

__
   
              PORS_____________
Inflation


                2.75 percent



        2.75 percent
Salary increases


 3.5 – 12.5 percent (varies by service)           4.0 – 10.0 percent (varies by service)
Investment rate of return
     7.5 percent, net of pension plan 
           7.5 percent, net of pension plan
investment expense, including inflation
       investment expense, including inflation
Benefit adjustments

     Lesser of 1% or $500 annually
         Lesser of 1% or $500 annually
Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table for Males or Females, as appropriate, with adjustments for mortality improvements based on Scale AA.

An actuarial experience study has been performed on data through June 30, 2015. This study involved comparing the actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2014 valuation to the actual results as well as making any new estimates and assumptions about the future as related to pensions.
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GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments for actuarial purposes is based upon the 30 year capital market outlook at the end of the fourth quarter of 2013. The actuarial long-term expected rates of return represent best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class and were developed in coordination with the investment consultant for the Retirement System Investment Commission (RSIC) using a building block approach, reflecting observable inflation and interest rate information available in the fixed income markets as well as Consensus Economic forecasts. The actuarial long-term assumptions for other asset classes are based on historical results, current market characteristics, and professional judgment. Furthermore, the long-term expected rate of return is derived by weighting the expected arithmetic real rate of return by the target allocation percentage for each asset class and by adding the expected inflation for actuarial purposes.




                                                          Expected








             Arithmetic Real
Long-Term Expected

       
Asset Class

    
   Target Allocation
 Rate of Return              Real Rate of Return







             Short term
5.00%
                         3.90%
    0.10% 

Domestic fixed income
13.00
6.50
0.42


Global fixed income
9.00
7.90
0.39


Global public equity
31.00
7.10
2.20


Global tactical asset allocation
10.00
4.90
0.49


Hedge funds
8.00
4.30
0.34


Private debt
7.00
9.90
0.69


Private equity
9.00
9.90
0.89


Real estate
5.00
6.00
0.30


Commodities
      3.00      
      5.90 
        0.18    

              
            
  
Total Expected Real Return            
100.00%
6.00%


Inflation for Actuarial Purposes

                                      2.75    


Total Expected Nominal Return                                                                                  
8.75%
The total expected nominal return rate of 8.75 percent has been reduced to 7.5 percent in order to be more conservative.
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GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liabilities for the SCRS and the PORS was 7.5 percent. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that the funding policy specified in the South Carolina Code of Laws will remain unchanged in future years. Based on those assumptions, the pension plans’ fiduciary net positions and future contributions were projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liabilities for the SCRS and the PORS.
Sensitivity of the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liabilities to changes in the discount rate. The following table presents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liabilities for the SCRS and PORS calculated using the discount rate of 7.5 percent, as well as what the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liabilities for the SCRS and the PORS would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage- point lower (6.50%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.50%) than the current discount rate:










   Current








       1%

   Discount
        1%








 Decrease
      Rate               Increase








  (6.50%)
   (7.50%)             (8.50%)
        Liberty’s proportionate share of

        the SCRS net pension liability
$
1,334,659
$1,058,653
$   827,325
           
        
        Liberty’s proportionate share of

        the PORS net pension liability 

$1,960,538
$
1,439,209
$
   973,168
   
         

        Total

$
3,295,197
$
2,497,862
$
1,800,493










Pension plans’ fiduciary net positions. Detailed information about the pension plans’ fiduciary net positions is available in the separately issued comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) containing financial statements and required supplementary information for the SCRS and the PORS. The CAFR of the Pension Trust Funds is publicly available on PEBA’s Retirement Benefits’ website at www.retirement.sc.gov, or a copy may be obtained by submitting a request to PEBA, PO Box 11960, Columbia, SC 29211-1960.
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NOTE 8 – EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLANS

The City employees may participate in the 457, and/or 401 (k) deferred compensation plans available to state and local governmental employees through the state public employee retirement system. These programs are administered by a state approved nongovernmental third party. There are no employer contributions made by the City to these plans.

SECTION 125 PLAN

Employees who meet various eligibility requirements have the option to contribute to a Section 125 plan. Under the Section 125 plan, pretax deductions are made from the employees’ payroll for health insurance, dental insurance, and vision insurance. 
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NOTE 9 - SEGMENT INFORMATION

According to GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements – and Management’s Discussion and Analysis-for State and Local Governments, if a government reports proprietary funds or use proprietary fund accounting and reporting standards to report their activities, then the government is required to present segment information for those activities in the notes to the financial statements. However, a government is not required to present such information when an individual fund is both a segment and is the sole fund reported as a major proprietary fund. This Statement defines a segment as an identifiable activity reported as or within a proprietary fund or an other stand-alone entity for which one or more revenue bonds or other revenue-backed debt instruments are outstanding. Furthermore, a segment has a specific identifiable revenue stream pledged in support of revenue bonds or other revenue-backed debt and has related expenses, gains and losses, assets, and liabilities that can be identified. The City has issued revenue bonds to finance its Water Department. The Water Department operates the City’s water supply system. The Sewer Department operates the City’s sewage pumping stations and collection systems. The Water Department along with the Sewer Department are combined and accounted for in a single proprietary fund, but investors in the bonds rely solely on the revenue generated by the water activities for repayment. The summary of financial information for the Water and Sewer Departments is presented below. 








             Water                       Sewer








         Department
   Department
          Total
Condensed Statement of Fund Net Position


Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources                            





Current assets

$
558,533
$
908,143
$
1,466,676




Non-current assets

1,383,983
2,638,620
4,022,603



Deferred outflows of resources                             
39,120           
39,129         
78,249




Total assets and deferred outflows






of resources
1,981,636
3,585,892
5,567,528


Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources


Current liabilities
59,974
567,176

627,150



Noncurrent liabilities
322,517
321,007
643,524



Deferred inflows of resources                             
383           
384           
767



Total liabilities and deferred inflows 




of resources
382,874
888,567
1,271,441





Net Position



Invested in capital assets, net of



related debt
1,364,087
2,638,620
4,002,707


Restricted
19,896
-
19,896



Unrestricted                                                                  194,884                     58,705        
273,484



Total net position
$
1,598,762
$   2,697,325
   $   4,296,087
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NOTE 9 - SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

                                                                                           Water                     Sewer







                      Department           Department              Total
Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and

Changes in Fund Net Position


Operating revenues



Water billings
$
570,872
$
-
$
570,872


Sewer billings
-
721,947
721,947


Miscellaneous revenues                                         
  7,578             
7,578         
15,156

Total operating revenues 
578,450
729,525
1,307,975

Operating expenses



Depreciation expense
58,582
88,757
147,339


Other operating expenses                                              494,822                 
671,654        
1,166,476

Total operating expenses                                                      553,404                  760,411        
1,313,815



Operating income (loss)
25,046
(30,886)
(5,840)


Nonoperating revenues (expenses):



Interest income
100
-
100


Interest expense
(6,913)
-
(6,913)


Bond issuance expense
-
(6,500)
(6,500)



Loss on disposal of fixed assets                             
   (5,119)          
(5,119)       
(10,238)


Total non-operating revenues (expenses)                
(11,932)          
(11,619)       
(23,551)


Net income (loss) before capital contributions
13,114
(42,505)
(29,391)



Capital contributions                                                     
-
        
390,135         
390,135

Change in net position
13,114
347,630
360,744

Beginning net position                                                  
1,585,648                2,349,695        
3,935,343

Ending net position
$
1,598,762
$
2,697,325       
$
4,296,087

    






            Water                      Sewer








        Department            Department
          Total
Condensed Statement of Cash Flows

Net cash provided (used) by:

Operating activities 
$
(14,710)
$
159,294
$
144,584

Capital and related financing activities
(21,305)
172,500
151,195


Noncapital financing activities
36,015
(331,794)
(295,779)

Investing activities                                                
100          
-
      
100          

Net increase (decrease) in cash
100
-
100

Beginning cash and cash equivalents                           
19,796          
-
    
19,796

Ending cash and cash equivalents                            $ 
19,896          $
-
 $

19,896
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NOTE 10 – ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

During the current fiscal year, the City provided service to approximately 1,400 water customers. However, the City did not receive a substantial percentage of its operating revenue from any single water customer.  
NOTE 11 – RISK MANAGEMENT

The City carries commercial insurance through the State of South Carolina Municipal Insurance Risk Finance Fund for its general liability insurance and through the South Carolina Municipal Insurance Trust for its workers’ compensation insurance. The City pays annual premiums for these coverages. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past three years.

NOTE 12 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

We have evaluated all subsequent events through December 31, 2016. Per the City, as of this date, there have not been any subsequent events that should have had an effect on the financial statements as of and for the year ended

June 30, 2016.
NOTE 13 – POST-EMPLOYMENT COST AND ACCRUED POST-EMPLOYMENT COST LIABILITIES OTHER THAN PENSIONS

The City has adopted GASB Statement 45. The statement improves the relevance and usefulness of financial reporting by (a) requiring systematic, accrual basis measurement and recognition of post-employment cost (expense) other than pensions over a period that approximates employees’ years of service and (b) providing information about actuarial accrued liabilities associated with other post-employment benefits and whether and to what extent progress is being made in funding the plan.

As of June 30, 2016, the City does not have any post-employment cost nor any accrued liabilities associated with post-employment benefits other than pensions.
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NOTE 14 – FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The definition of “fair value” is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The definition is based on an exit price (for an asset, the price at which it would be sold) rather than an entry price (for an asset, the price at which it would be bought), regardless of whether the company plans to hold or sell the asset. A second key definitional point is that GASB Statement No. 72 emphasizes that fair value is market based rather than entity specific; fair values must rest on assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability.

The accounting rules do not provide for an annual impairment test in determining whether fixed assets (e.g., property, plant, and equipment) and finite-lived intangible assets (e.g., customer lists) are impaired. Instead, they require that a triggering event occur before testing an asset for impairment. Examples of triggering events include the enactment or approval of laws or regulations or other changes in environmental factors and technological development or evidence of obsolescence. Once a triggering event has occurred, the impairment test employed is based on whether the intent is to hold the asset for continued use or to hold the asset for sale. If the intent is to hold the asset for continued use, the impairment test involves a comparison of undiscounted cash flows against the carrying value of the asset as an initial test. If the carrying value of such an asset exceeds the undiscounted cash flow, the asset would be deemed to be impaired. Impairment would then be measured as the difference between the fair value and the carrying value of the fixed or amortizing intangible asset. The City generally determines fair value by using the discounted cash flow method. If the intent is to hold the asset for sale and certain other criteria are met (i.e., the asset can be disposed of currently, appropriate levels of authority have approved the sale, and there is an actively pursuing buyer), the impairment test is a comparison of the asset’s carrying value to its fair value less costs to sell. To the extent that the carrying value is greater that the asset’s fair value less costs to sell, an impairment loss is recognized for the difference. If applicable, assets held for sale are separately presented on the balance sheet and are no longer depreciated. 
The City has determined that a triggering event which would require the testing of assets for impairment did not occur for the year ended June 30, 2016.
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NOTE 15 – SC RURAL INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY GRANT
The City was awarded a grant from the South Carolina Rural Infrastructure Authority for sewer upgrades performed at the intersection of Highway 178 and Highway 93 in Liberty’s downtown area for the year ended June 30, 2016. Invoices were submitted to the City by Payne, McGinn, and Cummins, at completion of various stages of the project. Also, one invoice was submitted to the City by the SC Appalachian Council of Governments for the administrative costs associated with the project. The City had not received any grant reimbursements as of June 30, 2016 from the SC Rural Infrastructure Authority. Therefore, a total of $320,164 was accrued and received after June 30, 2016 for current year grant expenses. The sewer upgrades were completed by June 30, 2016. 
NOTE 16 – SC MUNICIPAL INSURANCE TRUST GRANT

The City of Liberty received a total of $693 in grant reimbursements from the SC Municipal Insurance Trust for the year ended June 30, 2016. These reimbursements were for the purchase of police vests. An additional $1,080 was accrued for grant reimbursements received after June 30, 2016. These reimbursements were also for the purchase of police vests. The total grant reimbursements were $1,773.
NOTE 17 – SC MUNICIPAL INSURANCE AND RISK FINANCING FUND GRANT

The City of Liberty received a $2,000 grant reimbursement from the SC Municipal Insurance and Risk Financing Fund for the year ended June 30, 2016. This grant reimbursement was for the purchase of five wearable cameras for the Police Department.
NOTE 18 – COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT
The City received grant reimbursements from the South Carolina Department of Commerce for various improvements made on Commerce Street in Liberty’s downtown area for the year ended June 30, 2016. These improvements included the installation of new lighting posts, new sidewalks, and new pavement. These grant reimbursements were received for invoices submitted to the City by Payne, McGinn, and Cummins at completion of various stages of the project. The City received total grant reimbursements of $383,819 from the South Carolina Department of Commerce for the year ended June 30, 2016. Furthermore, an additional grant reimbursement of $16,000 was accrued and was received after June 30, 2016 for administrative costs incurred for the project for the current year. Therefore, the total current year grant revenue was $399,819. The improvements were completed by June 30, 2016.
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NOTE 19 – RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

During the current year, the City entered into a lease agreement with Pickens County, a political subdivision of the State of South Carolina, under which the City leased the courtroom offices and the reception area of the former magistrate’s office in exchange for consideration of an annual lease payment of ten dollars. Furthermore, under the lease, the City is required to pay all utilities necessary for use of the property. Also, the City was required to pay a $1,000 security deposit to Pickens County. Office duties that were previously performed at old Police Department at City Hall are now performed at the former magistrate’s office, with the exception of the dispatch services. The dispatch services are still being performed at the City Hall. Also, no amounts were identified to disclose that were due from or due to Pickens County for the year ended June 30, 2016 regarding this lease agreement.
NOTE 20 – FORT HILL NATURAL GAS AUTHORITY FRANCHISE TAXES
On June 10, 2015, Fort Hill Natural Gas Authority amended its fiscal year that formerly ran from April 1 through March 31 to be November 1 through October 31. This change resulted in a seven-month stub period between the end of Fort Hill’s old period and the beginning of the new period.  This seven-month period began on April 1, 2015 and ended on October 31, 2015. The City of Liberty received $22,986 during the current year from Fort Hill for its share of franchise taxes imposed on gas sales during that seven-month period. This is approximately $50,000 less than what the City normally receives on an annual basis from Fort Hill. As of June 30, 2016 and as of the date of this report, the City had not received any additional franchise taxes from Fort Hill from gas sales that occurred from November 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016. According to GASB Statement No. 33 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions, assets should be recognized for derived tax revenues of this type when the underlying exchange has occurred or when resources are received, whichever is first. Furthermore, in the government – wide financial statements, revenues should be recognized in the period when the underlying exchange has occurred if measurable or reasonably estimable. However, in the fund financial statements, revenues should be recognized when both measurable or reasonably estimable and available. Transactions that are not measurable or reasonably estimable should not be recognized but rather disclosed. The franchise taxes from Fort Hill are based on an underlying exchange, which are gas sales between Fort Hill and its customers. The City determined that Fort Hill’s gas sales for November 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016 could not be reasonably estimated. As a result, the franchise taxes could not be reasonably estimated. Therefore, the financial statements do not include a provision for the recognition of any franchise taxes from Fort Hill.
NOTE 21 – CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
This financial report is designed to provide the citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors with a general overview of the City’s finances and to demonstrate the City’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional information, contact Shirley Hughes, City Administrator, at 206 West Front Street, Liberty, South Carolina 29657.
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                                        2016                        2015​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​_  


SCRS:

City of Liberty’s proportion of the net pension 

liability
                                                                                                                             0.005582%
                0.004752%
 


                                                  
City of Liberty’s proportionate share of the net

pension liability
$
1,058,653
$
818,137





        
City of Liberty’s covered-employee payroll
$
540,274
$
438,724


                           

City of Liberty’s proportionate share of the net

pension liability as a percentage

of its covered-employee payroll

            195.95%

         186.48%



          
Plan fiduciary net position as a

percentage of the total pension liability

                 57.0%

             59.9%

                
PORS:
City of Liberty’s proportion of the net pension 

liability

          0.06603%

       0.06284%

                                                    
  

City of Liberty’s proportionate share of the net

pension liability
$
1,439,209
$
1,202,930



        
City of Liberty’s covered-employee payroll
$
800,744
$
748,450                           

City of Liberty’s proportionate share of the net

pension liability as a percentage

of its covered-employee payroll

            179.73%

         160.72%
          
Plan fiduciary net position as a

percentage of the total pension liability


              64.6%

             67.5%

Until a full 10-year trend is compiled, the City will present information for those years for which information is available.
See the independent auditors’ report and the notes to the required schedules.
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POLICE OFFICERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PORS)
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           2016                                   2015​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​_  
SCRS actuarially determined
         

contributions






                    $ 
52,510
                   $
55,918









 
PORS actuarially determined
         

contributions                                   

      
         
125,049    

110,676   







Total SCRS and PORS actuarially

determined contributions   





                    $
177,559
                    $
166,594





SCRS and PORS contributions in 

relation to the actuarially determined 

contributions                                  


        
(177,559) 
 
(166,594)  

Contribution deficiency (excess)





                    $
-
                    $
-


SCRS covered-employee payroll 





                    $
491,645
                    $
540,274


PORS covered-employee payroll    


          
937,292   
 
800,744     
Total SCRS and PORS covered-

employee payroll   





                   $
1,428,937
                    $
1,341,018









SCRS contributions as a percentage  

of covered-employee payroll  



            10.68%

            10.35%


PORS contributions as a percentage  

of covered-employee payroll        
  


            13.34%

            13.82%


Until a full 10-year trend is compiled, the City will present information for those years for which information is available.
See the independent auditors’ report and the notes to the required schedules.
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NOTE 1 – PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

GASB Statement No. 68 requires that a Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability be presented for each cost-sharing pension plan for the last ten years. Specifically, this schedule should present the following information for each year: the employer’s proportion (percentage) of the collective net pension liability, the employer’s proportionate share (amount) of the collective net pension liability, the employer’s covered-employee payroll, the employer’s proportionate share (amount) of the collective net pension liability as a percentage of the employer’s covered-employee payroll, and the pension plan’s fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability. However, until a full 10-year schedule is available, only the year(s) for which the information is available should be presented in the schedule. 

NOTE 2 – PENSION PLAN CONTRIBUTIONS
GASB statement No. 68 requires that a Schedule of Pension Plan Contributions be presented for the last ten years if the contribution requirements of the employer are statutorily or contractually established. Specifically, the Schedule of Contributions is to present the following information for the last ten years: the statutorily or contractually required employer contributions, the amount of contributions recognized by the pension plan in relation to the statutorily or contractually required employer contributions, the difference between the statutorily or contractually required employer contributions and the amount of contributions recognized by the pension plan in relation to the statutorily or contractually required amount, the employer’s covered-employee payroll, and the amount of contributions recognized by the pension plan in relation to the statutorily or contractually required employer contributions as a percentage of the employer’s covered-employee payroll. However, until a full 10-year schedule is available, only the year(s) for which the information is available should be presented in the schedule. 

NOTE 3 – CHANGE OF BENEFIT TERMS
No changes were made to the benefit terms during the year ended June 30, 2015 (the measurement year).

NOTE4 – CHANGE OF ASSUMPTIONS

No changes were made to the actuarial assumptions utilized during the year ended June 30, 2015 (the measurement year).
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         VARIANCE WITH

                                    

                                      BUDGETED AMOUNTS                         ACTUAL                FINAL BUDGET            

                                                                                ORIGINAL                     FINAL                  AMOUNTS         POSITIVE (NEGATIVE)
TAXES






Property
$   280,000
$   280,000
           $      281,158        
  
$ 1,158

Vehicle
30,000
30,000
42,812
12,812

Delinquent
20,000
20,000
15,694
(4,306)

Franchise – electricity
182,000
182,000
199,758
17,758


Franchise – Fort Hill
63,000
63,000
22,986
(40,014)


Franchise – Northland
15,000
15,000
11,430
(3,570)


Franchise – phone
900
900
-
(900)
  
Hospitality tax
65,000
65,000
80,547

15,547

TIF

120,000
120,000
114,050
(5,950)

Broker
3,000
3,000
4,151
1,151


MASC telecommunications taxes
18,000
18,000
11,715
(6,285)


Housing authority in lieu of taxes
 
5,500
         5,500

3,959
 
  (1,541)



                                                       

802,400                     
802,400             
    788,260
 
(14,140) 
LICENSES AND PERMITS

Business licenses
95,000
95,000
86,324
(8,676)

Yard sale permits
300
300
114
(186)


Portable sign permit fees
-
-
25
25


Building permits
8,000
8,000
13,163
5,163

MASC insurance business licenses
 
  190,000
                190,000
   231,420  
 
   41,420










 
293,300
     293,300
   331,046 

37,746

INTERGOVERNMENTAL

Fire revenue 1%

12,600                
12,600

15,441

2,841





12,600
     
12,600

15,441

2,841
FEES AND FINES

Police fines

150,000
150,000

213,713

63,713


Police fingerprint fees

-
-

100

100

Election filing fees
   
200                
200
   
150
    
(50)









   150,200
     150,200
   
213,963
  
  63,763
SHARED REVENUES

Homestead exemption
53,000
53,000
50,293
(2,707)

Manufacturer’s tax exemption
-
-
8,703
8,703


Aid to subdivisions 
60,000
60,000
71,555
11,555


Merchant inventory
6,600
6,600
6,648
48



Local option sales tax
     249,000
   249,000 
   369,704  
 
  120,704









   368,600
   368,600

   
506,903

    38,303
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           VARIANCE WITH

                                    

                                      BUDGETED AMOUNTS                            ACTUAL                FINAL BUDGET            

                                                                                ORIGINAL                     FINAL                     AMOUNTS         POSITIVE (NEGATIVE)
MISCELLANEOUS




Restitution payments
-
-
34
34



Miscellaneous
-
-
5,989
5,989




Donations to police department 
-
-
4,843
4,843



Parks & Rec donations
3,000
3,000
-
(3,000)



Athletic insurance fees
-
-
20
20



Rec picture sales
1,100
1,100
1,215
115



Fire fund raiser
5,000
5,000
1,680
(3,320)



Returned check fees
100
100
25
(75)



Admin festival and events
-
-
1,680
1,680



Fire miscellaneous revenue
-
-
1,220
1,220




Confiscated drug income
-
-
380
380





Sale of t-shirts
500
500
725
225



Rec sale of spirit cups
2,000
2,000
-
(2,000)




Insurance premium refunds
-
-
18,937
18,937




Rec sponsor banners
2,000
2,000
-
(2,000)



Sale of stadium signs
5,000
5,000
-
(5,000)



Team sponsorships
5,000
5,000
1,000
(4,000)



Public Works sale of recyclables          
35,000                
35,000               
3,208                     
(31,792)









     58,700
     
58,700               
40,956
   
(17,744)
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       VARIANCE WITH

                                    

                                      BUDGETED AMOUNTS                        ACTUAL                FINAL BUDGET            

                                                                                ORIGINAL                     FINAL                 AMOUNTS         POSITIVE (NEGATIVE)

GRANTS 


CDBG grant
-
-
399,819
399,819


SCMIT SBA grant
-
-
1,773
1,773


SCMIRF grant                                                         
-                 
                -              
2,000                 
2,000







     -
                 -

    403,592
   
403,592
CHARGES FOR SERVICES



Sanitation user fees
122,000
122,000
158,479
36,479



Recycling income
-
-
3,000
3,000



Recreation Department athletic fees
60,000
60,000
42,145
(17,855)



Recreation Department concessions
55,000
55,000
55,552
552



Recreation Department rentals
3,000
3,000
1,725
(1,275)



Rosewood rental income
5,000
5,000
3,840
(1,160)




Resource officer revenue
71,000
71,000
71,000
-




Juvenile facility
20,000
20,000
12,480
(7,520)



Fire call reimbursement
25,000
25,000
25,000
-




Fire district contract
208,000
208,000
193,589
(14,411)




Pickens dispatch
36,000
36,000
37,000
1,000




Cell tower rent
 
      10,560
       10,560
       
9,680

      (880)






   
615,560
     615,560

     613,490
   
 (2,070)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES



Sale of fixed asset
-
-
9,790
9,790




Capital lease
 
      -
                 -
       
39,404

      39,404







   
-
                 -

     49,194
   
 49,194
TOTALS
$2,301,360
$2,301,360
$2,962,845
$661,485







See the independent auditors’ report.
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        VARIANCE WITH

                                    

                                      BUDGETED AMOUNTS                        ACTUAL                 FINAL BUDGET            

                                                                                ORIGINAL                     FINAL                 AMOUNTS         POSITIVE (NEGATIVE)
ADMINISTRATION

Salaries and wages – regular 
$   78,000 
$   78,000

$
56,777
$ 
21,223


Salaries and wages – council
23,700
23,700
23,250
450


Salaries and wages – overtime
-
-
254
(254)


Unemployment
-
-
6,520
(6,520)


Admin health/life insurance
72,900
72,900
86,344
(13,444)



Payroll taxes

7,800
7,800
5,956
1,844



Pension
8,500
8,500
7,386
1,114


Workers’ compensation/liability insurance
21,100
21,100
39,082
(17,982)


Legal and accounting
11,000
11,000
9,858
1,142


Maintenance and service contracts
13,000
13,000
16,497
(3,497)

Admin building repairs
20,000
20,000
168
19,832


Telephone
4,000
4,000
4,214
(214)


Postage
2,000
2,000
2,348
(348)

Department office supplies/printing
6,000
6,000
9,048
(3,048)


Seminars, conventions, and meetings
1,000
1,000
447
553


Utilities
13,500
13,500
20,288
(6,788)


Dues and subscriptions
3,000
3,000
2,867
133


Medical services
200
200
75
125


Holiday and festival expense
15,000
15,000
23,270
(8,270)


Contributions
1,000
1,000
479
521


Debt service principal
46,000
46,000
48,999
(2,999)

Debt service interest
5,500
5,500
1,891
3,609

Capital outlay
394,948
394,948
-
394,948


Legion Hut expense
-
-
294
(294)

Landscape maintenance
1,000
1,000
465
535


Building permit inspection expense
13,000
13,000
14,241
(1,241)


Planning and zoning
500
500
-
500


Office furniture and equipment
2,000
2,000
-
2,000


Community development program
-
-
1,927
(1,927)


Rosewood expenses
12,500
12,500
-
12,500


Janitorial supplies
250
250
-
250

Election expenses
-
-
4,930
(4,930)


Ordinance recodification
6,500
6,500
2,798
3,702


Bank charges
5,000
5,000
8,010
(3,010)


Vehicle expense
200
200
1,255
(1,055)


Miscellaneous
500
500
102
398


Lease expense
-
-
10
(10)

Property tax
-
-
1,414
(1,414)

Ecivis Grant Network
 
      900
       
900
          900
     
       -

Total Administration

   790,498

   790,498    
   402,364
     
  388,134 
See the independent auditors’ report.
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       VARIANCE WITH

                                    

                                      BUDGETED AMOUNTS                        ACTUAL                FINAL BUDGET            

                                                                                ORIGINAL                     FINAL                 AMOUNTS         POSITIVE (NEGATIVE)
POLICE DEPARTMENT

Salaries and wages – regular
495,000
495,000
506,446
(11,446)

Salaries and wages – overtime
6,000
6,000
7,828
(1,828)



Salaries and wages – municipal judge
12,400
12,400
8,262
4,138



Payroll taxes
34,500
34,500
36,896
(2,396)



Workers’ compensation insurance
15,000
15,000
7,985
7,015



Drug testing
700
700
630
70



Pension
60,000
60,000
70,654
(10,654)

Legal and accounting
-
-
7,338
(7,338)



Judge

-
-
2,167
(2,167)



Jury

1,000
1,000
160
840



Office furniture and equipment
500
500
842
(342)



Uniforms
4,000
4,000
6,688
(2,688)



Maintenance and service contracts
7,000
7,000
7,692
(692)



Computer expenses
8,250
8,250
2,931
5,319



Maintenance and repairs to buildings
500
500
186
314



Vehicle expense
39,500
39,500
39,792
(292)



Telephone
5,000
5,000
6,095
(1,095)



Department office supplies/printing
3,000
3,000
2,908
92



Seminars, conventions, and meetings
500
500
-
500



Dues and subscriptions
500
500
350
150



Medical
700
700
317
383



Juvenile center expenses
4,000
4,000
1,382
2,618



Shared fines – state
60,000
60,000
101,252
(41,252)



Victims’ rights
5,000
5,000
2,050
2,950



Drug fund expense
-
-
609
(609)



Debt service principal
12,000
12,000
21,019
(9,019)



Debt service interest
1,000
1,000
914
86

Capital outlay
-
-
46,366
(46,366)


Tasers, radar, etc.
2,000
2,000
1,905
95



Prisoner expense
2,500
2,500
3,355
(855)



Postage
600
600
806
(206)



Contributions
500
500
-
500



Training
1,500
1,500
531
969



Medical treatment of prisoners
500
500
-
500



Canine
500
500
5,452
(4,952)



Supplies
2,000
2,000
1,583
417


Utilities
-
-
271
(271)



Judge’s expenses
 
      600
     
600
  
    -
    
600



Total Police Department
  
 786,750

 786,750
 
 903,662
  
(116,912)
 
 


See the independent auditors’ report.
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       VARIANCE WITH

                                    

                                      BUDGETED AMOUNTS                        ACTUAL                FINAL BUDGET            

                                                                                ORIGINAL                     FINAL                 AMOUNTS         POSITIVE (NEGATIVE)
FIRE DEPARTMENT

Salaries and wages – regular
290,000
290,000
312,271
(22,271)



Salaries and wages – pt
45,000
45,000
50,381
(5,381)



Salaries and wages – overtime
30,000
30,000
38,001
(8,001)



Salaries and wages – retention
27,500
27,500
27,727
(227)



Salaries and wages – volunteer
30,000
30,000
30,000
-



Payroll taxes
31,000
31,000
32,806
(1,806)



Pension
43,000
43,000
54,396
(11,396)



Workers’ compensation insurance
8,000
8,000
8,965
(965)



Drug testing
400
400
420
(20)



Uniforms
6,000
6,000
6,179
(179)

Maintenance and service contracts
2,000
2,000
2,499
(499)

Vehicle expense
14,000
14,000
14,775
(775)


Telephone
5,000
5,000
8,001
(3,001)



Department office supplies/printing
500
500
1,010
(510)



Seminars, conventions, and meetings
3,000
3,000
1,046
1,954



Utilities
2,500
2,500
1,484
1,016



Dues and subscriptions
500
500
-
500



Medical
1,000
1,000
1,150
(150)



1% expense
10,600
10,600
12,715
(2,115)



Fire prevention
1,000
1,000
-
1,000



Fund raising 
1,000
1,000
9,417
(8,417)



Capital outlay
-
-
5,076
(5,076)


Rescue equipment
1,000
1,000
39
961



Postage
100
100
57
43



Training
1,000
1,000
1,318
(318)



Training meals
1,500
1,500
1,568
(68)



Repairs
5,000
5,000
2,052
2,948


Supplies
2,000
2,000
3,151
(1,151)



Physicals
3,000
3,000
2,238
762



Radios, walkies, and turnouts
10,000
10,000
15,793
(5,793)



Office furniture and equipment
1,000
1,000
1,327
(327)



Expenses funded by county
2,500
2,500
1,454
1,046



Explorers

        1,000
         
1,000
              -
      
1,000


Total Fire Department
  
580,100

     580,100
 
647,316

    (67,216) 


See the independent auditors’ report.
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         VARIANCE WITH

                                    

                                      BUDGETED AMOUNTS                          ACTUAL                FINAL BUDGET            

                                                                                ORIGINAL                     FINAL                   AMOUNTS         POSITIVE (NEGATIVE)
PUBLIC WORKS

Salaries and wages – regular
88,991
88,991
71,747
17,244



Salaries and wages – recycling
26,500
26,500
27,115
(615)



Salaries and wages – overtime
500
500
114
386



Salaries and wages – recycling overtime
-
-
75
(75)



Payroll taxes
500
500
5,343
(4,843)



Payroll taxes -  recycling
1,500
1,500
1,893
(393)



Drug testing
250
250
130
120



Workers’ compensation insurance
6,000
6,000
3,614
2,386



Pension
7,500
7,500
5,814
1,686



Pension - recycling
2,200
2,200
3,039
(839)



Uniforms
100
100
2,983
(2,883)



Uniforms - recycling
100
100
-
100



Recycling expense
100
100
2,116
(2,016)



Maintenance and repairs
1,500
1,500
10,087
(8,587)



Vehicle expense
35,000
35,000
29,981
5,019



Vehicle expense -  recycling
18,500
18,500
10,046
8,454


Telephone expense -  recycling
600
600
580
20



Department office supplies/printing
200
200
334
(134)



Dues and memberships
100
100
-
100



Utilities
63,000
63,000
72,647
(9,647)

Medical
200
200
468
(268)



Asphalt, concrete, gravel
2,000
2,000
428
1,572



Small hand tools
-
-
133
(133)


Capital outlay
17,920
17,920
557,564
(539,644)


Miscellaneous
-
-
60
(60)



Recycling bins
1,000
1,000
-
1,000



Cleaning supplies
750
750
718
32



Shop supplies
4,100
4,100
3,483
617



Leaf bags
-
-
2,029
(2,029)



Lawn equipment
3,000
3,000
779
2,221



County waste fee
14,700
14,700
14,630
70



Inmate meals
100
100
-
100



Recycle dues, memberships
200
200
-
200



Recycle station
-
-



Debt service principal
33,987
33,987
34,257
(270)



Debt service interest
  
       3,545
 
      3,545
 
      3,275
   
   270  




Total Public Works
 
 334,643
 
 334,643
 
 865,482
 
(530,839)
.

See the independent auditors’ report.
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          VARIANCE WITH

                                    

                                      BUDGETED AMOUNTS                          ACTUAL                FINAL BUDGET            

                                                                                ORIGINAL                     FINAL                   AMOUNTS         POSITIVE (NEGATIVE)
RECREATION DEPARTMENT

Salaries and wages – regular

115,000

115,000

128,585

(13,585)


Salaries and wages – overtime
2,000
2,000
5,971
(3,971)



Payroll taxes
7,000
7,000
9,473
(2,473)

Pension
10,000
10,000
14,986
(4,986)



Drug testing
1,500
1,500
712
788



Workers’ compensation insurance
5,000
5,000
1,726
3,274



Maintenance and repairs
6,000
6,000
7,430
(1,430)



Vehicle expense
5,000
5,000
7,660
(2,660)



Uniforms and accessories
24,000
24,000
25,770
(1,770)



Telephone
1,500
1,500
2,171
(671)



Department office supplies
2,000
2,000
2,601
(601)



Recreation supplies
1,000
1,000
1,568
(568)



Utilities
35,000
35,000
42,815
(7,815)



Concession expense
19,000
19,000
22,991
(3,991)



Field and gym maintenance
7,500
7,500
-
7,500



Concession stand expense
1,200
1,200
941
259



Team equipment and supplies
7,000
7,000
5,621
1,379



Referees, officials
24,000
24,000
26,161
(2,161)

Insurance, participants
3,000
3,000
2,844
156


Program expenses
3,500
3,500
6,478
(2,978)



Light replacements
500
500
385
115



Field maintenance
-
-
9,229
(9,229)



Trophies, banquets
1,000
1,000
2,890
(1,890)



Safety code update
1,500
1,500
2,448
(948)



Postage
100
100
57
43



Landscape maintenance
5,000
5,000
925
4,075



Donations
100
100
-
100



Holiday expenses
100
100
-
100



Capital outlay
-
-
3,005
(3,005)



Background checks
100
100
330
(230)



Inmate meals
100
100
877
(777)



Mower gas and repairs
500
500
874
(374)



Equipment rental                                     
        -
        -
                514
       (514)


Total Recreation Department
     289,200
 
  289,200

  338,038
 
 (48,838)




TOTAL DEPARTMENTAL 







EXPENDITURES
$2,781,191
$2,781,191
$3,156,862

$(375,671)
See the independent auditors’ report.
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Allocated to





Collected by
Retained by
Remitted to
 Victims’





                         
     City       


 City Treasurer            State Treasurer
            Assistance   


Fines


$97,873


$97,873





Assessments

$75,843


$  8,350

$67,493

$
8,350

Surcharges

$36,759

   
$  3,000                  $33,759



3,000








Expenditures











Cell phone 








(1,165)



Training and conference registration







(225)



Travel








(532)

Balance, beginning of year








  22,086

Balance, end of year







$31,514
See the independent auditors’ report.
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